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CHAIR MOLINA: Public Works and Transportation Committee is now in session. For
the record, we have in attendance we have Committee Member Carroll, Hokama,
Tavares and Arakawa; excused is Vice-Chair Kane and the Chairman of the
Council, Patrick Kawano. From the Corporation Counsel's office, we have,
Traci Fujita-Villarosa; and the Council staff we have, Jan Inouye-Ogata, the
Legislative Analyst; and Committee Secretary, Jo-Ann Sato. Good morning,
Members.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Good morning.
CHAIR MOLINA: We'll first proceed with testimony. Those wishing to testify should
sign up at the Secretary's desk. Testimony shall be limited to three minutes. An
additional minute to conclude the testimony will be granted subject to the
discretion of the Chair. If your testimony is not completed, an additional three
minutes will be given to you after all others have been heard. Testifiers are
requested to state their name for the record and to indicate who they're
representing. And to minimize any disturbances during the meeting, the Chair
asks that you turn off all pagers and cellular phones. So, at this time, the Chair
will proceed with public testimony and first to testify on Item No. 68, we have
Len Cappe to be followed by Gina Flammer.

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY...
MR. CAPPE: Chairman, Members of the Committee, thank you for allowing me to
testify. My name is Len Cappe. I've come to these meetings regarding the sign
process for years now. And first I'd like to thank Joe Alueta, I think he's done a
great job and I think what we have here is pretty close to just what we want to
see . . . at least as a business person in the community. There are just a few
areas where I have some concern, not much. The first one would be on Page 8,
at least the Page 8 I'm looking at. I think it's Page 8 for everybody. Promotional,
would be the first one. If you just move up to where it says Business
Identification, you can see that it says in the Permit Required column, the last
column it says, yes, if sign is greater than 12 sq. ft., which basically means very
simply now if it's less than square . . . 12 sq. ft. or I think actually 12 sq. ft. or less
is, is what is implied there. And that would probably constitute the vast majority
of business here in Maui County, the vast majority of business following the no
permit required less than 12 sq. ft. category. I've been in business here for
20 years. My sign's been hanging up that long. I never had a permit, never had
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to pay for one. It's been up 24/7 for, for 20 years. And now, one of the new
changes here would be that a promotional sign, something I would put up just out
of an entire year maybe just a couple of weeks would require a permit. And I
really think that that just in the logic of, of letting a company put up a 12 sq. ft.
sign on a, on a day in, day out basis, to have them go for a permit for a sale
which is basically what that's meaning but in it you say promotional, is just a bad
idea. I, I don't think it's fair to business and I don't think it's really the way to go.
The logic behind this is, is founded on guys that are here in business that have
up sale banners and promotional type banners that never take 'em down.
They're up every day of the year. They're abusing the privilege. It's, it's, it's
illegal in the current sign code and it's probably a function of enforcement that
they don't, that the, you know, nothing is being done but that's not going to really
fix the problem by requiring a permit. These same guys are going to have signs
up until somebody comes along to tell 'em take 'em down. So, the enforcement
is really the issue here not the requiring a permit. And I think for small business,
it's another burden and it's another thing we got to go through. You have to think
ahead 'cause it's five days in advance is the requirement as it shows now to get
the permit. There's a cost involved. It just doesn't -- and it doesn't even state the
cost. If you look in here you'll find this cost is unstated, it will be determined at
some future date annually and as the budget requires. I think that's dangerous
too. So, I'd like to see the changes to Promotional be that . . . there are no
permits required. The other changes to Promotional I'd like -MS. INOUYE-OGATA: Three minutes.
MR. CAPPE: -- to see is, is that 8 sq. ft. be changed to 12 sq. ft. for the smaller sized
one. I have no problem with the 36 sq. ft. And the, the one per business, I'd like
to just remove the quantity. If a person wants to get creative and have one or
two or whatever they want, I think we should just allow them that freedom to do
that. The other changes were Informational, 4 sq. ft. Basically, the Open sign
that we see all over town, neon Open sign, everybody buys one for their
business, that's about 4 sq. ft. So, if you were to put your address in the window
and a little sign that said store hours and you couldn't even tell people the service
you provide in your, in your window, you'd be illegal with just your address and
store hours. So, 4 is way too small. Informational should be bumped up to
maybe about 12 sq. ft. I'd like to see that change made as well. Now, I know
that in the past, we all agreed that if a business was on a corner that they, we
would -MS. INOUYE-OGATA: Four minutes.
MR. CAPPE: -- extend the rules to allow them --
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CHAIR MOLINA: Len, I'm going to ask you to withhold your testimony. Would you like
to come back for an additional three minutes . . . after?
MR. CAPPE: Sure.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, and then we'll have the Members ask you question if they
choose to -MR. CAPPE: Oh, okay. Yeah.
CHAIR MOLINA: -- after your additional three minutes.
MR. CAPPE: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: . . . (INAUDIBLE) . . . when you come back.
MR. CAPPE: Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Okay, next to testify, we have Gina Flammer to be
followed by Susan Guille.
MS. FLAMMER: Good morning. Thank you for allowing me to speak this morning. My
name is Gina Flammer and I'm representing the Kula Community Association. I
brought with me a copy of our comments, so you should have that in front of you,
and so I'll just briefly summarize them right now. Our association is thrilled that
you're taking up this ordinance again. We've received many comments from
residents concerned about the proliferation of inappropriate signs. The
escalation of sign competition can, can be seen throughout our community.
We're pleased that the proposed sign ordinance specifically addresses the
desires of Maui, Maui County to preserve the quality of life by retaining the
natural beauty of landscape and view. The bill's specific regulations for
Agricultural and Rural districts reflect this desire. These regulations are set forth
on Page 15, prohibit signs of neon, fluorescent, fiber optics, or other similar
material. We would ask that this section be expanded to include the prohibition
of internally lit signs. We also ask that the use of natural materials or natural
looking materials be required for rural and agricultural areas. Our association
finds that plastic and/or internally lit signs are inappropriate for the Upcountry
region. Our second request has to do with the fine print in the bill. As we read it,
it appears that quasi-public buildings located within a rural or agricultural district
need not conform to the stricter rural guidelines. As such, the quasi-public
building such as a church could put up a neon sign as long as it met the size
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requirement. We would ask that quasi-public buildings located within rural or
agricultural areas be required to conform to the guidelines for rural or agricultural
areas. Again, we strongly support the passage of this bill and I thank you for
consideration of our request. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank, thank you, Gina. Committee Members, any questions for the
testifier? Hearing none. Thank you. And we have to testify now Susan Guille.
And if there's anyone else in the gallery who would like to testify now is your
opportunity to come up to the Secretary's desk. Before we proceed with
testimony from Ms. Guille, the Chair would like to recognize the presence of the
Vice-Chairperson of the Committee, Dain Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Sorry for being late, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: No problems, Mr. Kane. Proceed, Sue.
MS. GUILLE: Good morning, Chairperson Molina, and Members of the Maui County
Council. I'm Susan Guille and I'm co-owner of Volcano Signs. This sign
ordinance -- we actually started working with the Planning Department with
Joe Alueta in 1996 to create this document. So, we're excited that it's finally
coming forward because the document we have right now is very vague, very
hard to interpret and the new one really clears up a lot of gray areas. So, I want
to thank Joe and the Planning Department for all their years of work and we did
have a lot of meetings to create this document. There's just a couple issues that
as a sign maker that I have with the document and also as a business owner.
Actually, they are some of the same issues that Len Cappe had. Promotional
signs, the 12 sq. ft. for the smaller business frontage -- or the 8 sq. ft. should be
changed to 12 sq. ft. A 2 ft. by 4 ft. banner is quite small and hard to see from
the roadway, so I would recommend a 12 sq. ft., which would be a like 2 by 6 and
it would give somebody a little better exposure for a promotional sign. The other
thing that I also don't agree with is permitting banners. Banners are kind of
something that sometimes people do on the spur of the moment. If your
business is bad and you need to boost it up a little bit, you think about doing a
promotion. Right now, the permit process for signs other than banners, takes a
long time in the, in the Planning Department and I think people will become
frustrated and I think they will stop using banners and that will also hurt us as
sign makers. It's, it's a big part of our business. Unless the County could do it
online, make it really streamlined very easy to do, I don't think people are going
to take the time especially if they're sole owners of their businesses to come
down and apply for a sign permit, come all the way down here. I think it has to
be streamlined if you're going to do that but I would recommend not doing that.
The other . . . thing also is the Informational signs. Four sq. ft. is too small;
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12 sq. ft. makes a lot more sense in that department. I also would say too if
there's going to be fees charged for banner permits, if that does go that way, that
there's no fee to non-profits. Non-profits that do their fundraising every year, it's
a big part of their, their funds to operate and there shouldn't be a fee lodged for,
for any kind of permits for them. The other thing that I would also ask, it's on
Page 10, it has to do with sizes of signs based on setbacks. And in the building
setback 100 ft. or more, in the 80 or more foot category it calls for a maximum
sign area of 60 sq. ft. I would ask that we change it to 64 and the reason being
for that is that, the materials that signs are made out of come at 8 by 4 sheets.
So, in that case, you would have two 8 by 4 sheets to create a sign. You would
be chopping off a little unusable piece. So, from a practical point of view as a
sign maker, I would ask that it's 64 sq. ft. as versus 60 sq. ft. And I think that's all
I actually have. Otherwise, I think it's a great document. It will really help us.
MS. INOUYE-OGATA: Three minutes.
MS. GUILLE: It will really help us, you know, help the customer on what they're allowed
to have for their business and I think hopefully clean up the sign situation in Maui.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Susan. Committee Members, any questions for
the testifier? Seeing none. Thank you, Sue.
MS. GUILLE: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: To . . . Joe, you had a question for -MR. ALUETA: No, no, question. If the, if the . . . I can address many of those questions
that came up right now.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, we'll do that once we hit the discussion phase. Thank you. To
complete his testimony we have Len Cappe for, to return for his final three
minutes.
MR. CAPPE: Yeah, thank you for letting me finish. The question I, I really have at this
point is just for Joe. I know that we discussed the, the situation of a business
that's on a corner and we determined that if they qualified based on the frontages
and so forth, that each facing . . . each roadway side or, or, you know, each side
of a corner business could have a sign on it. I think there was full agreement but
I don't see it anywhere in here, maybe it is and I don't see it.
MR. ALUETA: It's in there, there but they would be max'd to one --
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CHAIR MOLINA: Excuse me, Len, if you could just go ahead with your testimony and
then we can bring this question up during our discussion phase.
MR. CAPPE: Okay, so, so my question is I know there was full agreement that if a, if a
business qualified on two . . . you know, facings, if it's a corner business that it
could be allowed to have signage facing each way, you know, within those
qualifying limits of you know. And, and essentially even . . . it should, being that
if, if, if their, if their frontages are above this 12 sq. ft. size requirement then
below that they should be allowed 2 sq. ft. signs which I, I don't see that very
clear in here. But it may be and I just can't find it but I didn't find that one, one
thing and I know there was full agreement with everybody. There was no real
problem; people agreed that that was a good idea. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Len. Committee Members, any questions for the
testifier? Seeing none. Thank you. Is there anyone else in the gallery that
would like to testify on today's matters? Okay. Seeing none. The Chair will
close public testimony for our items today.
. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . . .
ITEM NO. 68: RE: REGULATION OF COMMERCIAL SIGNS ON PRIVATE
PROPERTY (C.C. 00 281)
-

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Members, we have six items on our agenda. The first item
relates to the regulation of public signs . . . County Communication No. 00-281.
The Planning Director transmitted a proposed bill entitled " A Bill for an
Ordinance repealing Chapter 16.12A, Maui County Code, and amending Title 16,
Maui County Code, pertaining to the regulation of commercial signs on private
property." The purpose of the proposed bill is to amend the Maui County Code to
address complaints and concerns relating to the interpretation of existing
provisions relating to commercial signs on private property. At its meeting of
February 14, almost one year to the day, Members, the Committee deferred
consideration of this item pending further discussion. The Committee today may
consider whether to recommend passage of the proposed bill on first reading,
with or without revisions. The Committee may also consider other related action
including the possible filing of County Communication No. 00-281. And for your
information, at the last meeting there was a request made for a matrix to propose
changes, which should be located towards the back of your binder in the Item 68.
And Mr. Alueta made a presentation last year and there are copies of that also in
the binder. The Chair has invited from the Planning Department, Mr. Alueta, to
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give his overview and comments on this. So, Joe, if you . . . well, okay, before I
proceed with Joe. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. Mr. Chairman, could you clarify for me which bill
we're looking at. The one attached to the communication or the one that's later
on in the binder?
CHAIR MOLINA: I believe it's the one attached to the communication, if I'm correct.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It says 2000? Because there is one that says 2001.
CHAIR MOLINA: Jan, if you would.
MS. INOUYE-OGATA: Mr. Chair, I believe . . . at last year's meeting of February 13,
there was actually a revised version of the bill and that is dated 2001. That's a
ramseyered version.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, that's, that's the one in the back of the, back towards the -MS. INOUYE-OGATA: Towards the back.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That's the one right after the hard copy of Joe's
presentation.
CHAIR MOLINA: Right. Thank, thank you for that clarification. After the presentation
in your binder, Members, it's Item 68 . . . Bill No. 2001. So, that is the bill to
consider.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, I was having a little trouble following the
testifiers when they're referring to certain pages that didn't have the item on that
page in their version. So, I hope that we're all looking at the right one.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you for bringing that up. I think that's a -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah, you're right, right.
CHAIR MOLINA: -- good point. Any other questions, Members, at this time before I
turn the mike over to the Planning Department representative? Okay, hearing
none. Go ahead, Joe.
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MR. ALUETA: Thank you. Good morning, Council Members. Our first list just provides
some clarity on, as Councilmember Tavares pointed out, you have two, basically,
there's two ordinances before you. And I'm, I'm sure Corp. Counsel can provide
some clarity here. Is that one is, is repealing all of . . . 16.12A and then titling it,
or . . . repealing the majority of 16.12A except for the commercial portions that
regulate commercial signs. So, the only portion that would be left within 16.12A
is the political signs, for the regulation of political signs. I believe that we do
have -- and Traci will go over more detail of that of the, of what's in there -- and
it's basically just leaving the Campaign signs and how that's regulated.
Everything else has been moved to 16.13, which will create the, the commercial
sign ordinance, which will regulate signs within private property. And that was,
and that's what the majority, and that's what all of the testimony that you heard
today was about and the majority of our work was. We just felt it was simpler
from the advice of Corp. Counsel to remove campaign signs out of the, out of
commercial signage. And so, I will -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Joe. Excuse me.
CHAIR MOLINA: Go ahead, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Alueta, you said that it's
going to be 16.13 now?
MR. ALUETA: Yes, and that's what you have under Commercial Signs. If you look on
that back page on Page 13, it says Chapter 16.13, Commercial Signs.
CHAIR MOLINA: Members, Page 13.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Page 13?
MR. ALUETA: Yes, on the very bottom it says 16.13.
CHAIR MOLINA: Of the 2001 ordinance.
MR. ALUETA: On the 2001.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Page 11, Charmaine.
MR. ALUETA: I'm sorry, Page . . . Page 11.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, Page 11.
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MR. ALUETA: Page 11, sorry.
CHAIR MOLINA: Page 11. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: I only had one cup of coffee this morning, sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Continue, Joe.
MR. ALUETA: Okay. And so, the matrix that I provided you, the, the, the table, that
shows the changes basically from 16 . . . from the 16.12A to the new 16.12A and
as you can see the majority of it is all deleted. And so, if you look at the table
that was, the other table which is comparing 16.12A to 16.13, I think that is the,
the real meat of the matter and that goes over some . . . all of the changes. And
I'll, I'll, I'll quickly go over some of these changes, you have, you have them in
your binder. One of the main, some of the key highlights would be . . . under the
General Provisions. This would only affect private property and would not affect
County property . . . as it did in the previous ordinance. This would allow for the
Department of Parks and Recreation to regulate their own signage if they give
out permits for special events on Park property. They would, they would have,
we would not enforce how those events occur like the County Fair or anything
else, that wouldn't cover those. It also recog. . .this, the General Provisions, the
big thing is that it recognizes the BCT Districts to have their own comp. . .to have
their own signage along with the Historic District, which before there was a lot of
confusion which ordinance takes president [sic] precedence, the Historic District
guidelines or the sign ordinance. Another big thing was the, we moved . . . the,
the Director from the Pub. . .Public Works, which I'm sure they're happy about.
This ordinance it's now regulated by the Planning Department or the Planning
Director. The majority of the . . . as Director Goode has pointed out, they receive
the permit and then they transmit it over to Planning and then we do the, the
review of it, process, and then make our recommendation for approval or denial
and we sent it back and they just sign, sign off on it. That is, that takes a lot of
time and it, it's a lot of wasted footwork for, for the public as well as County, so
we just streamlined it to make, put it all within the Planning Department. Let's
see . . . we've improved the definitions. Along with the prohibited neon there are
new materials out there as, you know, fiber optics, stuff that we would call neon
is not necessarily -- by technical terms it's not neon, it's incandescent. I don't
know. Some of you have seen there's a lot of different terms for what we would
consider neon or fluorescent and so, we just said any similar material. We've,
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and we're also prohibiting it within the Ag and Rural Districts. The other big
change that we, I discussed earlier was that this, this creates and recognizes the
Ag District, the Rural District, the Interim Districts as well as Public/Quasi-Public.
Before we never were able to regulate . . . those kind of districts or had a very
tough time and the, the ordinance was vague as to what was allowed in those, in
those areas. This allows for us to at least regulate those. You also still have
areas that are still zoned interim and you have commercial uses that are going
on in the interim district that are existing legal and they may be community
planned for, for commercial use but over the years we, it never got around to
being actually zoned. A lot of that is being changed by this Council and is
actually being zoned but there are still a few properties out there. This or. . .this
ordinance will allow for us to recognize the commercial nature and to regulate
them based upon their community plan . . . district. Okay. Let's see . . . oh, we
also recognize golf courses and parks. There was no, there was no section
within the existing code, so this will allow for private parks, which there are some
private parks along with golf courses to regulate the signage along with special
events. Such as, you know, when you have like the Kapalua Open or the
Mercedes, those kind of golf tournaments or tennis tournaments, there was no
way to promote them, to have banners on their property and it made it very
difficult for some of the destination areas. We recognized and expanded some of
the destination areas and allowed them to come back with a comprehensive
signage plan that is more fitting to allow them to regulate their signs more
thoroughly and also to have additional signage as they needed. The resort areas
are not your problem areas. We've never found them to be. They always are
very strict about having very tasteful signs as far as size. So, we've never
worried about tacky signs in those areas. So, we felt that we could give them a
little more leeway provided that they come in with a comprehensive sign and it's
approved by the, the Urban Design Review Board. One of the big things I think a
lot of people are going to look at is the . . . the signage to go beove [sic] above
64 sq. ft. is going to be a lot more tougher. You have to prove some form of
hardship when you go to Urban Design. And I think Urban Design has already
been applying those standards when they review bigger signs. So I think it just
provides clarity. But for small, for the majority, for 90 percent of the businesses,
we moved a lot of the, the language that was more of a word math problem into a
table that's pretty straightforward. You're this far away from the road, you have
this much frontage, this is the size you get. No problem. That's pretty much the,
the main changes. At this time, if I can, Chair, address some of the questions
that came up from the testi. . .testimony.
CHAIR MOLINA: Sure. What I'd like to do first, let's -- I'm going to open the floor up to
questions from the Committee Members and then we can go back to some of the
questions that you had, quite possibly some of the members may have --
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MR. ALUETA: Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: -- heard those questions too. Okay, Committee Members, at this
time, any questions for Mr. Alueta? I'll open the floor up right now. We'll start
first with Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you and good morning, Mr Chairman. And although Joe
said that he will address some of the questions, I think some of my questions are
related to what the testimony is. So, maybe we can -CHAIR MOLINA: Sure.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: -- if, if it's okay to proceed. And I have just one question so we
can all have equal access to -CHAIR MOLINA: Rec. . .recognition.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: -- to the question and answer portion of this meeting. The
public/quasi-public aspect, Joe, I heard you mention that it's addressed in this
bill. Would you address the specific point that was brought up I believe by the
Kula Community Association in regards to that and if the language isn't strong
enough or it's not clear enough, do you see any problems with the
recommendation of the, the KCA in how to deal with the public/quasi-public
property specifically maybe in the, in the example was churches conforming to
the Ag and Rural laws?
MR. ALUETA: I think . . . one, you're dealing with a very specific issue there because
many, and so that's, and so it's very hard to say we're going to tailor this
ordinance which is island-wide or Countywide ordinance to one specific issue.
When those properties come in for, to be zoned Public/Quasi-Public, the
restriction on the signage if they are within a rural setting should be, should be
imposed at the zoning level. Say in, similar to what happens with . . . a lot, many
times churches will come in that are within the Ag and Rural District and that
seems to be very common but they're still zoned. They're under, they're under a
special or conditional permit and so, they would still be subject to the Ag and
Rural ordinance. The problem I guess is in the case of the Kula is that, you
actually have a property that is zoned Public/Quasi-Public within and it's just the
surrounding properties are Ag and Rural. I'm not sure how to go back to change
that and I'm leery because you have a lot of public/quasi-public. The majority is
within the urban areas such as, you know, First Assembly of God, Christ the
King. I mean all the churches that you see in Kahului which are
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public/quasi-public but we have no, they cannot get signage or they have to go
through a variance process which is what many of 'em are doing. I understand
their concern. This ordinance does not prohibit a more restrictive overlay for
rural and we have what we call the BCT guidelines and that's not necessarily
going to help in this case.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: It seems like that discussion would take place at a, at a different
meeting under a different . . . title, so.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank, thank you for clarifying that. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Kane. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Just staying in that same line for a little bit. Just, if, if
public/quasi-public, if we're looking at all of the different types of
public/quasi-public, what are the requirements at this point and how were they
changed?
MR. ALUETA: Under the, under the existing ordinance?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Under the existing ordinance.
MR. ALUETA: There is none. They go to a variance.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So -MR. ALUETA: So, like -COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So, if, if a, if a church or public/quasi-public group
wanted to go through and get a sign, they have to go through the variance
process? In this ordinance, what, how would that affect them?
MR. ALUETA: Basically, it would, it would recognize the district, and you're allowed to
go through a permit procedure to get a regular sign permit like any other . . . and
that's covered under . . . Section, the proposed 16.13.100. And for build. . .for a
Building Identification sign, it would allow for a 16 sq. ft. sign; for Business
Identification, it would allow for a 12 sq. ft.; and if projecting or hanging, 8 sq. ft.;
for Promotional, it will allow once again 8 sq. ft. and 36. And basically it will allow
for the first level or what we would consider a Category A sign for, for businesses
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and it does not allow, and it would not allow for scale up. So, if you had a really
large church you wouldn't, you couldn't -COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Get a real large sign.
MR. ALUETA: -- you couldn't get a really large sign. And it would just allow for -- it
would be, it's quite, I mean it's, it's pretty restrictive and, and I don't think it's
going to be a major problem with the majority of the, the Public/Quasi-Public .. .
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Well, it seems that you're making it a little bit easier
for them to be able to get signage rather than going through the BVA process.
That's, that's the way it appears to me.
MR. ALUETA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So, the intent is to try and get them to have the
normal signage that you would have on businesses to, to limitation. Is that
correct?
MR. ALUETA: To limit, yeah, to a certain extent, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Mr. Carroll, do you have any
questions for Mr. Alueta at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I'd like to pass for now.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Hokama, questions for Mr. Alueta?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Joe, on Lanai . . . the Castle and Cook Resorts tend,
tends to use boulders for signage. This, that that would be covered under this
ordinance proposal?
MR. ALUETA: Yeah, we would just . . . you can put it on a rock wall or a boulder it
doesn't really matter. We would just measure that line of the wording unless we
consider the boulder to be . . . all of the sign. I don't see that as a problem. Also,
for Lanai, they have a design guideline and this, this ordinance, like I said, this
ordinance recognizes if there is, if there is a design guideline in place. And so,
and that design guideline happens to be a lot more restrictive than probably this
ordinance, so Lanai would be, follow under that.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. On your subsection 220, Nonconforming Signs.
You know we had a situation arise in, in another matter and what Council did
upon request from the departments was to enact a new ordinance to address the
concern and allow a period of time for full compliance of everybody. Why
wouldn't we consider something similar for this new chapter? And say that, you
know, because, obviously, the way it's brought up to us is that complaints have
been made and that's why you're presenting this proposal to us to address those
complaints and concerns. Well, grandfathering in those complaints still doesn't
address or, or solve the problem. So, why wouldn't we say everybody has to
conform, those that have nonconforming signs has a period of whatever, two
years. I mean I'm just throwing it out, that may not be a appropriate period, but
let's say two years to conform to the new . . . to the new ordinance.
MR. ALUETA: Okay. We discussed this with our Corp. Counsel and one -- and it also
was brought up at many of the Urban Design regarding the legality of those
putting on for these signage. We felt that given our, given the environment that
we live in, Hawaii and the salt environment, the signs that are nonconforming will
eventually rot and, and deteriorate to the point where they have to be replaced.
And you found that such as . . . a good example would be Hashi's. They had a
rooftop sign. He changed out the plate put a new Plexiglas in. That's, that's
changing the sign. Okay, it wasn't like just putting in the exact same what was
there, he put in a new sign. And that was considered a substantial enough
change that he lost his nonconformity and we had to go and cite him and that's
why you have now just a frame up there with -- and similar with the shop before
that he had the sign on the roof, he never got a permit so it was taken down. But
eventually everything rusts or rots in some fashion. The second one, the second
position was that we had . . . the same nonconforming . . . in our, in our previous
ordinance and it . . . for one reason or another it didn't work. And I'll turn to, if, if
maybe Corp. Counsel has something more on that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed, Corporation Counsel.
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: Yeah, let me just clarify, too. It's, it's important that when
you look at this Section, this 16.13.220, Nonconforming Signs, paragraph A
states that signs which do not conform to this chapter but which met the
requirements in effect at the time of sign's installation are hereby deemed a legal
nonconforming sign. It's important to, to note that that the sign had to be in
compliance at the time it was installed. Most of the signs . . . where the Planning
Department receives complaints, the signs are not, they're in violation of the
current sign ordinance. Those signs would not be grandfathered in. So, it's only
the signs that were, you know, legal, they're legal at the time of the installation
would be grandfathered. So that's an important thing to, to remember.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. So, repair and maintenance to
you is, is defined differently? You know you mentioned Hashi's as an example
and he changed the Plexiglas, I mean couldn't he argue that it was a repair?
MR. ALUETA: If he had kept the sign exactly the same meaning what he, what was
depicted when he went in for his approval I guess but he didn't, he changed, he
changed the whole image, logo, and everything. And that's where we, that's,
that's primarily the thing, it has to be the same sign and it wasn't the same sign.
Had he put in the exact same image, wording .. .
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: It would still be a non. . .legal nonconforming.
MR. ALUETA: It, it, it would be a legal nonconforming sign. But most of these signs,
we find will . . . rot and have to be legal as Traci said. And we have sign permits
going back to 1972 from when I did some research on stuff. It goes back pretty
far. So, we can check if someone says I had a sign permit. We have the records
to show whether or not that actually, that person got a sign permit and as Traci
says many of the ones that we get complaints never got a sign permit, period.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Ms. Tavares, questions for Mr. Alueta.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'd like to follow up on Mr. Hokama line, if I can ask
Corporation Counsel, why could we not put in a time limit to conform to this new
ordinance?
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: Oh, no, you . . . I'm sorry you can. But, yeah, I wasn't
saying that you, that Council couldn't that, I was just explaining, you know,
what -- wanted to make, point out the language that, you know, was being
proposed. But if Council wanted to . . . to do what, what Councilman Hokama
said, we, we could do that.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, okay.
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: That would be legal.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I think that's, you know, a good suggestion from
Mr. Hokama to put in a time period, you know, whatever . . . a reasonable one, to
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have all the signs changed over to conform with this ordinance if it passes. So,
maybe two years might be too short but . . . you know, at least something rather
than having the department having to go back and see, oh, is that sign permitted,
was it legal at the time they put it up and all that. I mean if we got one ordinance
and people have, you know, let's say five years to conform to the new sign
ordinance, they got five years so in 2006 or whatever from that point forward all
the signs will follow this ordinance or something you know. I, I just thought
enforcement would probably be easier that way.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Okay, any other questions for
Mr. Alueta at this time? Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Just again following up on testimony, Mr. Chair, and maybe Joe
can respond. The, the permit fee, permit process as well as the fee process
that's being recommended in this bill, obviously, you heard the, the comments
that, you know, why are we doing this and, and what does it solve. And I think
Mr. Cappe came up and said what's the logic behind it, does it really address the
issue that we're dealing with. I'm not going to draw a conclusion but I tend to
agree that by just adding a permit process, you know, creates . . . creates
hardship for, for I guess spontaneity in business and whatnot. But, you know,
again I haven't drawn any conclusions, I'm just trying to understand it better on
the, on the, the reason why you folks came up with this. And in fact, if your
department would be able to deal or handle it from a man. . .from a manpower
standpoint and dealing with, you know, an additional . . . I guess job description
for you, for your department, for the department that you're in. So, if you can
respond.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah, part of this came out because, from the, from the inspectors that
deal in the field. And once again, this is, the permit like say for promotional
signs, we came up with a number of, of six. Okay, you can apply for all six at
one time, makes it simple. Our problem with the inspectors was they couldn't tell
which -- if a banner, they put it up, how long the banner had been there because
there's no dates that they put it up. And it, and it, it becomes onerous on the, on
the inspector to try to say, okay, I saw this banner here last week, so I'm going to
come back in five days to see or two weeks to see whether it's still up or wait for
a complaint. And that's how a lot of them are. What we wanted to have was the
guy comes in at the beginning of year I'm going to have these six banners for the
year, here's my permit, and we, we handle it all at once. We have a new, as, as
you, probably some of you have heard the, a KIVA system which tracks permits.
The inspectors can see what permits instantaneously have been approved and
are out there. So, when they drive-by they can say, well, that permit wasn't
approved. He never got it. So, he can go and say, yeah, you know, you're in
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violation, you never got a permit for that banner. And it makes it a lot simpler for
them and also we feel that, you know, those, it, it helps those businesses that are
actually trying to be, they're honest and they come in and get their permit.
Because they have to compete with what you call "sign wars" people putting up
illegal banners or cigarette banners because these companies give 'em away
free or, or liquor, you know, for Budweiser or whatever. Those are the kind of
banners that really get obnoxious and that that, that the majority of our
complaints come about from. So, if someone's going to run a special on, you
know, Budweiser and you want to put a banner up, it's not . . . you know, it's, it's
going to be a very nominal fee and they can come in and do it. And it's going to
be . . . our, our envision of it is, you fill out the thing right there, it's issued to you
right there. There's not you turn it in, you come back. The way I . . . process that
I envision is a person comes in, they fill it out, the inspector or the, the client
checkers come in, they sign it, they give you your copy, and he inputs the carbon
copy into it.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Go ahead, Dain.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Just to follow up on this line, if I may?
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Two things that, that I'm going to follow up with, the first thing, is
when a person comes in to apply for, for the signs and they can apply for all six
at once, the, the permit for all of 'em. Do they have to come in and tell you the
dates of all those things, so everything has to be set? Say they come in, in
January and they want to get for the whole year or July they want to go for a
whole fiscal year. Do they have to give you all those date certains at that point in
time?
MR. ALUETA: Yes. They have to give us the dates that the banner will be up.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Okay, because that would not be in line with say how a business
functions as far as them -- a lot of times they don't, they don't function that way
where they plan out a year in advance exactly when they're going to be needing
banners for, for sale promotions or whatnot. So, I'm just trying to understand
how, how, I mean you, you depict it in a way of, oh, you know, it's going to be
real simple, they can come in and get all six at once. But the reality is a lot of the
businesses don't function like that and it would actually create more of a hardship
for them to have to come in every time to do those banners. So, anyway, that's
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just more of a comment. The second comment I have, Mr. Chair, and I apologize
I said question but my, my concern is that it seems like this issue is being based
on providing more convenience for us in government versus more convenience
for the people who are out there trying to make a living. And I, and for me that
seems kind of inverse. It should be . . . where we're trying to make a better
quality of life for people out there, not make it harder for them. So, if you can
help me understand that.
MR. ALUETA: Okay. It came from the Outdoor Circle, and a lot of the people who are
having problems with the, the amount of banners that go up, the illegal ones.
And, you know, as a business owner myself, you know, yeah, I, I mean I've had
several businesses and I've used banners all the time and I use it as my
permanent sign. But I, as far as promotional, when I wanted to do a promotion,
you had to plan it out . . . more than five days. If I was going to do a sale, I had
to go down. It takes time just to go plan to go order a banner to figure out what
the banner is going to say. Now, if you run a business, you better be competent
enough to know how to plan something like that. If you're not, you're not going to
be in business very long. I mean that's, I mean maybe I'm more hardcore about
it than most other businesses but I just think, you know, if you're going to think,
oh, today I'm going to have a sale. I'm going to run down and get an instant sign
and put up the banner. I don't know I mean maybe Len guys are saying, yeah,
that's how he does it and maybe, you know, Sue knows that that's how
businesses plan their, they say they want to have a sale today and they come
down and get a sign. I didn't hear that from when we held, held businesses, held
our meetings from some of the businesses, that wasn't the issue. There was a
concern I guess with the fee of how much it was going to be and they did think it
was an inconvenience, you know, but some of them thought, they understood
what the rationale was. And like I say the Department was trying to balance the
concerns of not only (1) our inspectors, you know, or the people who have to
enforce this law, the business owners but also the general public that has to view
these banners. I think that's who you have to also take into consideration.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thanks, Joe. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Kane. Before I proceed with more questions,
the Corporation Counsel wanted to make a comment.
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: Thank you. I just wanted to point out the existing sign
ordinance, there is, the provision for promotional signs allows signs to stay up for
no more than 14 days. And the problem that the Planning Department was
having was that sometimes these signs would be up for 14 days then they would
be taken down for say a day and then put back up again. So, there was no way,
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excuse me, there was no way for the Planning Department to enforce these
signs. Or sometimes I think there was an example of a sign that would be up
continuously and then every 14 days they would change part of the sign I think
like it was some kind of a special and then they would change, you know, just like
a portion of it, yeah, the date or something on there. So, the, the new sign
ordinance, the reason for this, this permit procedure was to address that problem
that the Planning Department was having with enforcement because there was
no way for them to know how long a sign has been up or there was no limit.
Actually, there is no limit currently for the number of promotional signs a business
can have per year, so they could have one up every day, every 14 days they
could just change it and keep putting it up over and over again. So, that that was
the reason for this, that was what we were trying to address here.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, any other questions for Mr. Alueta? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, along those same lines, I'll just follow everybody
else's lead here today since I'm at the end. Could we not devise something
where these businesses could provide notification of their promotional signs and
say . . . (CHANGE TAPE) . . . or a business owner or whatever, I'm going to put
up a promotional sign on this day to this day. Then you've got a record of when
they said they were going to do something, you know, without them having to
come in. I mean short of doing it by e-mail or, you know, maybe e-mails a way
but some sort of notification rather than them physically having to come in to get
a sign permit for the promotional signs. Would something like that work where
you get a notification that they're going to put up a banner or, or promotional sign
for and it starts on this day and ends on this day then you could then keep track
just as you would be keeping track if they came in and physically did a permit.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Alueta or, or Corp. Counsel, would you like to comment?
MR. ALUETA: I guess that, I mean we feel that we could, that's what the whole permit
procedure is for. Now, how the permit procedure takes place meaning as you
said online or by fax, I don't see a problem with the administering . . . handling it
that way. Meaning someone faxes in the permit, say I'm going to have this
permit, it's going to up right now or today from . . . and then we just take the fax,
prove it based on what he's got, what is his presentation in the dates, and then
fax back the approval and use the fax as the permit. The permit is not going to
be complicated. It's, like I say, it's going to be half a sheet of carbon paper
similar to -- I'm envisioning something the size our sick leave form -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
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MR. ALUETA: -- or, you know, vacation forms. They're half a sheet carbon paper and
that, but I don't see a problem with someone just . . . having that copy of it, filling
in what they're going to do, fax it in to the department with the return fax
obviously that we could then sign, write on that permit, that form and then fax it
back.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: So, I think it's . . . I feel that we could administer this in a way that would
be quick and efficient for the people that . . . and I think the concern may be
some of the . . . Council, the public has is that five day part, where it says they
would have, they should have filed, filed for it five days in advance, advance. I
mean maybe that can be changed as far as how that's going to be.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Yeah, I, I just, you know, believe like Mr. Kane
too that it should be for the convenience. And we keep hearing all the criticism
about how unfriendly Hawaii is to business and to me the, the simpler we can
make it for the business people, you know, the better. Try to get that part, part
improved. So, would, would we have to put something in the ordinance as to
what methodology would be used or accepted for permits? Or is that getting too
nitty-gritty?
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Alueta or Corp. Counsel . . . do you need a moment, a brief
recess to respond to that question?
MR. ALUETA: Yeah, if I can, if we could maybe move on and I'll come back to that and
answer that as far as I mean as possible just to say how to address that or .. .
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: We would just need to, the, the permit procedures are in
place in 16.13.160, Sign Permit Procedure, Section A Promotional Signs. So, if,
you know, like Joe said it's, it's open as far as, you know, what exactly those
procedures are, so we would just amend this proposed bill to reflect whatever
procedures we wanted in place. I mean it may be even possible for . . . I don't
know, I'm just thinking off the top of my head here, but if say a business came in
at the beginning of the year, signed up for its six promotional sign permits and
then maybe called in the department for the dates. Maybe the dates could be
filled in later, you know, over the phone or via fax or something. I'm sure they're,
they could work something out. But it's, it is basically, the sign, the promotional
sign permit procedure was basically what Councilmember Tavares said it's a
notification for the Department. That's all we were envisioning is somehow the
Department needed to be notified when that business was going to be using one
of its promotional signs, so that they could be checked off. So, that if there was a
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complaint that came in, the Department could take a look at their list and say,
well, this person, that's, you know, that's a legal sign that they have up. And then
once their six promotional signs were used up then the Department would know
that any other signs that went up for that business would be illegal. So, but the,
the, the per. . .procedures itself, you know, can definitely be changed.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. You know I think
there's a really major change in limiting signs to six per, per year, business signs,
rather than having an unlimited amount. And what we're doing with businesses
by saying six times per year, you know, promotional signs depending on the type
of business, they're all different purposes for promotional signs and you promote
different things. For instance, if you were doing a windsurf activity you might be
selling something. Today, your special would be sails, next day it may be the
cords, it may be eyeglasses, the next day. I mean there could be all different
things that you would want to promote and businesses do that very routinely.
Your supermarkets, you know, every week you've got a different ad for a different
kind of promotional. To limit that to just six times per year on a promotional sign,
I think is a very dramatic change in how we, we do things now. So, I think that
needs to be something that's considered and I, for one, don't believe limiting it to
six times a year is something that I could support.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Now . . .
CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah, Mr. Alueta, could you respond to that. Is, is there some leeway
in, in this ordinance that if a business wanted to go above the limit of six is there
something in there that . . . some flexibility?
MR. ALUETA: Well, we, we felt that this -- the whole point of having a banner or a
promotional sign is to promote a special. Now, if it's something that occurs on a
regular basis, like I say, that they want to have and, and, and, and then, and, and
a organization or, you know, business feels it's so important that they continue to
change their promotion, right. This ordinance does not regulate one of the, one
of the changes to the business ID sign. If they wanted to put the business ID
sign and make it to have removable letters such as you have at Savers, that
would include it, they can include that into their sign as part of their sign and
change the promotion if they want to have it that way. The banner is a separate
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distinct sign for a Christmas sale, Valentine's Day sale, I mean, the . . . certain
holidays, it's normally -- or Grand Opening, Going Out of Business sale. Okay. If
they feel that they need to have the specials on a regular basis then they should
incorporate it within their existing sign, their existing business sign. The new
ordinance does not under . . . what we're looking at is under the current code
when it goes, when a larger sign goes to Urban Design and Review Board,
they've regulated certain what you can put bylines. They have restricted bylines.
In this new ordinance, we don't restrict the content of the business ID sign. So, if
somebody wanted to have a 60 sq. . .or if they got a 60 or a 64 sq. ft. sign, you
know, the top 30 sq. ft. of it will be the name of their business, the bottom part of
it could be interchangeable letters that would be part, that would be . . . that they
could use for, you know, sunglass special or, you know, your, your windsurf
training headquarters, you know, or whatever you wanted to call it. But, and that
could be incorporated into the business ID sign -COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Well, let's -MR. ALUETA: -- and that's why I'm trying to make a distinction between . . . you know,
someone that has a rotating, they always want to have some kind of new sheik
thing as opposed to a special banner. They're given another sign basically.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: I understand where you're coming from but in my
mind, I can't, I can't see somebody like Walmart, changing the Walmart sign and
under the Walmart sign putting up every, the special every time they change the
special as, as a way to do business. Now, those ID signs I believe are, are very
distinctly different from promotional signs and the promotional banners which are
meant to promote specific things and not be the ID of the, of the business. I think
they're two separate. So, I'm not following trying to put, for instance, the big
Walmart sign, 64 sq. ft. or whatever that sign is, underneath that trying to put
down the special of today is. I think that would, that would be a lot different from
how I envision those ID signs. Okay. The, again, six times a year for
promotional, it depends on the type of business you have as to what you do as
promotionals. A lot of businesses do different types of promotional on a daily
basis and changing the, the signage for that promotional . . . I think requires a lot
of . . . a lot more than just six limit. So, and that's just my thought on that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: And if you're going to be asking any other questions, I
some other questions --
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CHAIR MOLINA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: -- I can wait . . .
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Joe, just for Mr. Alueta, question on
one of the testifiers suggested increasing the size limit on promotional signs from
8 sq. ft. to 12. Can I get your comments on that? Is that something .. .
MR. ALUETA: I'm not too concerned about that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: That's . . . the majority of the sign, hardly anyone uses an 8 sq. ft. The
reason it was, it was based on size of the frontage, so the majority of the sign,
businesses have larger. And so, I don't have . . . problem going with the 12 -CHAIR MOLINA: With 12?
MR. ALUETA: Yeah, as far as the size.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. And another testifier suggested about fees being waived for
non-profits.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah, I don't have problem with that -CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: -- at least that never came up as an issue, yeah.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: And once again, like some of these, like the sizes, the majority of these
sizes are conversions from the existing sign ordinance. We're not proposing
anything dramatically different from the existing sign code as far as the sizes and
whatnot.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Alueta. Committee Members? Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Alueta, you know, sometimes in the Alamaha area,
we got those . . . 5 ft. hot air helium balloons with the, the stringers trying to, you
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know, help find a location for some kind of promo sale going on. Is that covered
under this proposal?
MR. ALUETA: No. It . . . there was discussion of it, however, we felt that that was too
cumbersome -- oh, I'm sorry, I mean . . . corrected me. Oh, no . . . we do, we
restrict inflatable signs but if they're just as you say helium balloons .. .
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: What, what, what would you call one of those things
with the, the stringer attached to a specific site of a commercial business?
MR. ALUETA: Creative advertising. We don't, we, yeah, we don't, we don't -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I don't care whether it's creative or not.
MR. ALUETA: No, no, but we don't, we don't, we're not regulating it.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I want to know whether it's going to be covered by this
proposal.
MR. ALUETA: We are not propos. . .we are not proposing it to regulate those.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Why?
MR. ALUETA: Because it's not defined as -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: It's a signage.
MR. ALUETA: -- it's not defined as sign, does not have words, logos. If it's like the
inflatable Uniroyal tiger then, yes, we would regulate that. If it's a large inflatable
Wendy's cup, yes, if it's a sign we would regulate it and we prohibited it. If it's a
large inflatable eagle like they had when they opened Eagle, yes, it's prohibited.
We do not regulate those. If it's, you're talking about a rainbow of balloons, no,
we're not going to regulate those.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, is this clear in the proposal?
MR. ALUETA: Yes, we feel it is.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Corp. Counsel.
CHAIR MOLINA: Corp. Counsel.
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MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: I guess I'd need some clarification. What, what kind of sign
are you, are you thinking about?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Just those things we see, you know, every now and
then in Alamaha, you know, I don't know what, which store puts it out. But they
got one . . . balloon within like an arrow shape and they got a long stringer with
small banners attached all the way down . . . yellow banners or whatnot. And it's,
it's a way for, you know, to get your attention, right, if you're a motorist and, you
know, if you follow the banner, you know, it's going to lead you to a store that or
a business that is doing some kind of promotion or advertising.
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: Well, the reason why I was asking you to describe it
because the new sign ordinance tries to regulate signs by the type. And so, if
you look, you know, in our, in our charts here where it talks about the possible
kinds. I supposed that could be considered a Wind Sign maybe almost like a flag
type of thing where it uses wind for its motion. But like Joe said unless it has
some kind of words on it or like a symbol, it wouldn't be considered a sign if it
was just a colorful . . . it's like we don't rec. . .rec. . .regulate under the sign
ordinance, you know, those pennants that go around used car lots, the neon
lighting -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, even if it could be a potential hazard of tying up our
electrical lines and our Police and Fire people are going to be called out. We're
going to respond after we get one -MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: -- report in.
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: The, the, the issue came up because I know that there were
some . . . when we had these meetings regarding, when we were drafting the
sign ordinance, people were concerned about other types of advertising devices
that weren't considered signs such as the ones that you're describing or even like
architectural lighting, you know, like that that blue neon in that Kihei Gateway
Center. You know that kind of thing needed to be, it's needs to be regulate -- if
the County would like to regulate it, it needs to be regulated under some other
device not the sign ordinance. But it's, it's not that, not to say that we can't
regulate it, it's just that this is just not the place for it. And I'm not sure if the
Planning Department -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: But it's being used for, as part of a commercial entity
though.
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MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: Right. Right. No, I agree with you that it's, the purpose is to
attract attention and to get people to come to its store but it doesn't fall within the
definition of a sign unless it has -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Words.
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: -- something on it that, you know, words or their symbol or
something that we, then the County can then identify it as a sign and then have,
regulate it under the sign ordinance. If it's just solid colors, you know, balloons,
solid flags, you know, that kind of thing, it needs to be regulated under something
else. And I'm not sure if the Planning Department is taking a look at doing that
but I do know that this comment came up.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Do we have something that would cover, maybe
Mr. Alueta could tell us, on nonpermitted advertising practices or something like
that? You know how like under zoning we have permitted uses.
MR. ALUETA: We have prohibited signs and one of those is inflatable signs like I
said . . .
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah, but it has to be a specific -MR. ALUETA: But it's -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: -- kind you can ID as an advertising.
MR. ALUETA: We have not . . . if you wish to incorporate it in this sign ordinance, you
can and if the Council wants to but we just felt that it was very (1) difficult to
enforce and we felt that . . . it was just too big of an issue. It's similar to lighting.
We didn't put in lighting in our issue, in this sign ordinance. We tried to be very
focused on what we were looking at and we tried not to be . . . to, to stray off.
We tried to keep it clearly to word, symbols, logos, and a sign. We tried to really
be specific on this. And, yeah, we, we get complaints on those balloons, we just,
we just not, we did not feel that this sign ordinance was a vehicle in which to
regulate them.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you for your answers.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Members, any other comments or
questions for Mr. Alueta or Ms. Fujita-Villarosa? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Well, Mr. Chairman, you started talking about some of
those dimensions of the signs and then I heard you, Mr. Alueta, refer to a sign as
64 sq. ft. So, is that -- I heard a testifier talking about moving that to, from
whatever it was to 64, 60 to 64. So, you don't have a problem with that in
particular?
MR. ALUETA: No. Ms. Guille and I talked about this before and, and once, once we
had done the . . . drafted and sent it up and I said that I would not be, you know,
opposed to that and I, I don't consider it that significant of a change to our
ordinance.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Any other questions? Mr. Arakawa. Go, go ahead with your
question. I, I wanted to ask you something afterwards regarding that. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. Just for the, just for the record so we have this
clear on the chart that you put out. So, it's okay to change the 8 ft. to the 12 ft.
under Promotional, and under Informational, the 4 ft. to 12 ft., and on Page 20,
the 60 ft. to 64 ft. Those, those .. .
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chair, Chairman, can you have Mr. Arakawa run that
by again?
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Mr. Arakawa, can you go over that again.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Under Promotional -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: What page?
CHAIR MOLINA: I believe that's on Page 8.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Page 18.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No, we're on Page 22, right, of the latest version.
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: I, I have it on Page 18.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Arakawa, what page are you making references from? I know it
had to do with promotional signs that first one, right, to increase from 8 to 12 ft.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Eight to twelve ft.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: What page was this?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mine, mine says 18.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm on 22.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'm on 22.
MR. ALUETA: Promotional signs are within all the districts.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, every district has one.
MR. ALUETA: So, if you just tell us, we'll change all of 'em straight through it but -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: -- it's primarily dealing with the commercial. If you want to have
promotional signs .. .
VICE-CHAIR KANE: No, 8 to 12, 4 to 12, and 60 .. .
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah, 8 to 12 . . .
VICE-CHAIR KANE: . . . to 64.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: . . . 4 to 12 . . .
CHAIR MOLINA: Sixty to sixty-four.
MR. ALUETA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: . . . and to 64.
MR. ALUETA: So, we'll make a note of that and we'll change it wherever promotional
signs are permitted within any of the districts we'll change it from 8 to 12 .. .
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Four to twelve and sixty-four.
MR. ALUETA: The ground, the, I believe the sign that she, Ms. Guille was specifically
talking about is in the Commercial District which is on Page . . . which would be
under Business Identification and Building Identification Sign, the max size,
moving from where you have the building setback that's on Page 20, excuse me,
building setback of 100 ft. or more building or business frontages and that will be
80 or more feet and that will be changing it from 60 to 64. I didn't quite -- was the
other one, the information?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Let's see . . . informational . . . Informational . . . 4 to
12.
CHAIR MOLINA: What page is that, Mr. Arakawa?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: I'm looking on Page 19.
CHAIR MOLINA: Nineteen.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Information, max size.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Max size. It goes with the three that were brought up.
CHAIR MOLINA: So, Mr. Alueta, you have no problems with those changes or
suggested changes?
MR. ALUETA: Well, the Information one I have a little, just . . .
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That's a big change 4 to 12.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah. 'Cause you're allowing 4 sq. ft. now and . . . and in a way I'm just
trying to make sure that the purpose of the information, the purpose of the sign is
not lost. I mean I don't want, I don't want to have the, all these little signs that
are, that are allowed, right, that we don't regulate by with a permit to become
another business sign. That's, that's our, that's our concern. When we say
information sign we're talking about, you know, definition is which is on Page -- I
hope it's on Page 15 of yours -- means a sign providing information on activities
on the property such as store hours, conditions of sale, and acceptable credit
cards. So, you know -COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Right.
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MR. ALUETA: -- it, it, this information sign shouldn't be saying the world's best
cheeseburger you know. And so, I'm trying to figure out . . . if they want to
have . . . how big of a sign do you need to say we're open or we're closed, we
take Visa, Mastercard, and Discover, you know, that's, that's my concern. What,
what, you know, no checks accepted, what more information, how big of
information sign do you want?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: These are maximums and what, what I'm trying to do
is clarify because in testimony these were the things that were brought up.
MR. ALUETA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. As far as, as far as the, the different
promotional things like we're selling cheeseburgers, I, I would think that would
come under the promotional sign. You have a very limited scope in your
definition for informational sign, so it would be information that would be required
on that sign. And depending on the type of business for informational, for
instance, if you have a doctor's office, you know, a 2 by 6 sign is not a real big
sign and if you want to put in the information as to your office hours and things.
From a car looking at a lot of those, those, those 4 ft. signs now, I actually have
to get out of the car, walk up to the building to be able to see when the office
hours are because it, it really is small and you just can't see that you have to
actually get out. And maybe it's because my sight is not as good as it used to be
but.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Arakawa, what, what do you feel would be a size that would be
suggested maybe 6 ft. is the limitation?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: The, the maximum of 12 ft. depending on the
business, depending on the distance away from the, the parking from where you
can drive up to it and look at it. You know I, I don't have a problem with 12 ft. If
you've got a sidewalk between where you park the car and where the building is
to see it would be very difficult if it's too small.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So, it would, it would, you'd have to pretty much
gauge depending on the business but I wouldn't have a problem up to 12 ft.
because again a 2 by 6 sign is not that big in my mind.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Alueta, your comments? Is, is, is there --
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VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: -- a number of square feet that would be somewhere in between 12
and as suggested by Mr. Arakawa and your limitation of 4?
MR. ALUETA: Okay . . . I would, I would not, I would not want to see -- once again this
is taking it from the existing sign ordinance. We're just trying, we were trying to
make it simple taking what's there now. We do not want to see a sliding scale on
the information sign, that would be a little too much for . . . I think that, and I
won't . . . because 6 sq. ft. is 1 by 6.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Two by three.
MR. ALUETA: Three by three . . . two by three.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mister, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Go ahead, Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: And I don't know the business so I can't speak for, but from what
my colleague said about 2 by 6 not being that big. I mean I, I visualize that and I
go, okay, 2 by 6 and do I need that much space to say, we're open, we accept
Mastercard, Visa, no checks accepted, here's my store hours. I don't think it's for
us to say that you need to provide so much convenience as to somebody sitting
in their car going, wow, I wonder if they're open or closed or whatnot. And again,
I'm just saying that 12 ft. seems rather large for the intent of what the sign is and
if it's for information, you know, we, we can . . . I don't know if I could support
12 ft. that's I think kind of getting out there and just my personal opinion. And I, I
could, you know, in discussion if, if it's necessary, you know, we could settle for
something a little bigger than 4 ft. but to go up to 12 fate [sic], 12 ft. I think that
would be excessive. And again, I'm not a businessperson, so for anybody out
there who's in business and are feeling offended, please don't get offended. I'm
just saying why are we going to increase it by 300 percent for the basis of saying
we're open or the, the, the limited information that we allow on those types of
signs. So, my two cents.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Kane. Any other comments on this matter?
Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, I think the purpose of the
informational signs is to provide that finite information and usually if you're
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interested in going to a store perhaps you should be calling them to find out
whether they're open or not before you cruise around. The other thing that's of
concern I think is that do we want to encourage people who are driving to be
trying to read signs. I mean I, I heard the worse, you know, that there's more
traffic accidents in parking lots that any place else but if we're going to encourage
people to try to, you know, read a sign on a, on a building or on a, on a window,
that's not the intention. I mean, you know, park the car and get out and walk
around if your, if your interested. Or, you know, if those, I understand the, those
open signs that they have, that's not illegal?
MR. ALUETA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No. And what is the size of that? I thought I heard
somebody say it was .. .
MS. GUILLE: Those can usually be 4 sq. ft.
MR. CAPPE: If they're about 4 sq. ft. that would be all you'd be allowed.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Four sq. ft., one of those.
MR. CAPPE: The open sign is your whole informational sign.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Alueta.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, I didn't think they were that, I didn't think they
were 4 sq. ft.
MR. ALUETA: I know . . . I'm, I'm sorry, but the ones -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The ones that -MR. ALUETA: -- the ones that I see at Costco -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
MR. ALUETA: -- that they sell -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
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MR. ALUETA: -- are 6 to 8 inches tall by about, about 2 ft.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: One by two, about.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah. And so, I can't -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's 2 sq. ft.
MR. ALUETA: -- I could see raising, if it's, you know, for the 4 sq. ft. combined to allow
for about 6 sq. ft. Because I don't believe, I think the most important thing is are
you open or closed whether or not you take credit cards is something you walk
up to.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh. Yeah, I think, I think so for the information.
You know and the other thing, it's just a general, general comment is . . . you
know, how much sign, how much signage or how many signs are we going to
allow before we become tacky looking? I think that's some of the questions we
need to ask ourselves here and if the Council Members, you know, feel that,
yeah, it's going to be okay to put, you know, all these, a lot of signs and banners
and whatever then, then we have to be able to live with the effect of that or how
that impacts our ambiance. I think the whole reason why we regulate signs in the
first place is 'cause if it were, if it were unregulated, it would just be a big contest
out there to see who could get the biggest signs. I, you know, I think we have to
come within reason and, and . . . be aware of what we're trying to portray Maui to
be. And I think if you look at the resorts, they do a much better job on controlling
signs than any place else because they understand the value of the, the
environment or the ambiance as you drive into a particular area. I mean if you've
traveled on the mainland and gone past some of these smaller places where you
can tell who has sign ordinances and who doesn't. I mean it's just, it just looks
like, you know, something I'm sure we don't want to look like. And so, we got to
bear that in mind as we talk about sizes or frequencies or placement, stuff like
that. We want to have enough signage so that people can be recognized if
they're looking for a place. I mean I got a big problem when I talk about signs
here but since Mr. Public Works is sitting here, I got a problem with these
buildings that don't even have their address on it. I mean I was going the other
day to find the open house for the new office of the Maui Pacific Center on
Lipoa Street and none of those buildings that I could see had an address on it
anywhere. Even that big building didn't have an address. So, I had to go
around -- I'm not kidding -- that's 1470, I think, Lipoa . . . doesn't have an address
on it. And usually you'll find those buildings will have an address, you know, in
big letters, 1470 or whatever. So, I'm, I'm more concerned about that kind of
stuff with people trying to find places because they'll know the address but if the
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address isn't outside there somewhere, you know, how do you find it. There's no
mailboxes on the sidewalk, so you can't tell that. And even the Shell station and
whatever station Texaco that's down there on Lipoa, I don't think either that or,
you know, and I was driving slowly trying to look for a sign and not cause an
accident. But you couldn't find addresses there, so I'm, I'm a little concerned
about that for how many people we have looking for places particularly in a resort
area when we don't have even that as, as proper signage. So, I don't know if
that falls under signs but I think we need to encourage these businesses to put
their street addresses out on their business fronts, too.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, I'm sure the Public Works Director will take your comments to
heart and I know it's all about aesthetics. Mr. Alueta, the suggestion being made
by Mr. Arakawa about not limiting the amount of signs, where did you folks come
up with the six sign limit I mean I'm just curious? I know that it came from the
existing ordinance I, I assume.
MR. ALUETA: The promotional, the limit on the number of promotional signs came out
of, of discussions with someone who felt, actually, it started with the ad hoc Sign
Makers Committee that Sue chaired and I sat in on. And the number 4, 4 was,
you know, seasonal 4 was too little, 12 was too much and 6 came out the
number that was thrown out.
CHAIR MOLINA: So, so these suggestions came from business people.
MR. ALUETA: At the time, that's where the number was first generated from. I do not
believe that they . . . envisioned permitting probably at the time. I think and also,
I think they actually wanted to have self-permitting, meaning the ban. . .sign
makers would be able to issue the permits.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: We just felt that . . . it was a little more difficult for us to administer that
part and that's where the . . . out of discussions with everyone the permit came
up and we felt that we could do it relatively quickly.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman. You know, Joe, when we were, when
we were talking about this some years back, I, I remember that we were having
discussions about identifying when an event started and when an event ended.
And we were supposed to be trying to work with an idea of putting the start date
and the ending date on the signage and that would allow any inspector going
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through that area to be able to see when an event started and when it ended.
Now, from that it seems we're going and we're saying, well, we're banning that
idea and we're going to try and limit the number of events and I don't believe
there's a limit on the number events currently. Now, promotional signs on this
one the businesses, correct me if I'm wrong, but I don't believe that there's a limit
on the number, a finite number that we're limited to right now. So, well, am I
correct on that?
MR. ALUETA: The . . .
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Promotional . . .
MR. ALUETA: . . . problem, the problem that we had was defining a special event and
that's where the inspectors had the problem. Okay, now and that's what it says
and so what we're saying is . . . that's fine. I mean I'm open to suggestions on
this one -COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: -- as far as if you want to say put the banner out but they got to put the
date on it as far as -- and it has to be, but are you going to define a special event
or are you just giving them another sign? And that's, the, the question is,
because if, say you go, if it's up for two weeks and say, you raise the number to
12, well, it's up half the time of the year. I suppose, you know, why not just put it
up all year and that's what the people are doing. They are changing the banner
date but the banner stays up. All they do is paste another sticker that has the
next two weeks on it, okay, and they have a sale that's ongoing, that's year
round. If you have a sale year round, just put it in your business ID sign. The
whole point is that people are using the, the idea of having, allowing for a
promotional sign for a special event and using it as if it was another business
identification sign and that's, that's the, the, the, what we're wrestling with. We're
not willing to give them another business ID sign unless they're on a corner but
we're saying so and that's, that's where the, this all came out to fair it out as far
as the, the permit for the banners.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay, well -MR. ALUETA: Do you have another -- I mean I'm open to hear what's said.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: And, and again, another thing when we, when we
started discussing this that's, that's where it came from. Perhaps regulating that
you cannot put up signs more than . . . a week between events or two weeks
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between events. Something like that so that you'd have to have a break, you
couldn't just keep it up because I understand where you're coming from on this.
It's, it's a very difficult topic to deal with because as we have it right now, you
know, if it's, if it's going to be permitted, you should be able to have a record of all
the different events. If they're going to, if they're going to come in for a permit,
they'll have a time certain printed on those banners. If you're not going to do that
then we, well, we'll have a problem with the constant sign being there with the
different, just changing the date. But again, in the combination of what you're
proposing, there should be some control on what is an event, what the, the
permitted event is going to be, and what is required to be a permitted event.
Okay. I mean, if you're going to make a permit for it and you're going to say this
is promotional but then you're going to, you're going to require a permit to be
created for it then that should have some requirements as to what is a permitted
event. If you're not going to do that then you're going to have a problem with the
constant sign and without any way to monitor what is being done at all. So, I can
see where you have a problem with that but from going to no time limits and
going to just six, you know, I think a lot of businesses are going to have to really
do some major adjustments on that. And it, again, it depends on how we're
going to define it. So, in my mind, I'm trying to clarify whether this is going to be
very onerous for a lot of businesses and if we, if it is going to be onerous, can we
regulate it in the permit process upon what we've allowed to be permitted -CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mister .. .
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: -- or not. Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. At this point, the Chair would like to take a
break and we can continue our deliberations on this matter Item 68. We shall
reconvene at 10:40. . . . (gavel) . . .
RECESS: 10:27 a.m.
RECONVENE: 10:43 a.m.
CHAIR MOLINA:
. . . (gavel) . . . Public Works and Transportation meeting for
February 13 th is now back in session. Members, at this point, the Chair if there's
no other discussion would like to make his recommendation. Any other
discussion or, Members, you'd like to hear from other resource personnel?
Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah, we were . . . I was talking to Joe in the interim
and we were looking at some, some things we were discussing and perhaps,
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Joe, you can go into some of the, the discussion we were going over. The, the
12 sq., the 4 to 12 sq. ft., that could be a lot smaller because the informational
sign maybe, maybe we can settle on about 6, 8 ft. The . . . one . . . try, why don't
you go over some of that, Joe.
CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah. Mr. Arakawa, at this point -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Chair. Mister. . .Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I would think if Mr. Arakawa would like to make that a
motion because, you know, the bottom line is this committee is going to decide,
you know, and we've heard Mr. Alueta's presentation. He has given us his
comments and reasons why certain things are being proposed. Now, it's up to
us to make a decision whether we want to agree with him or make changes but I
think it's, it's time to, for us to make those considerations.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. And as I was about to say to
Mr. Arakawa, at this point, I'll make my recommendation and then with your
proposed revision or amendment, we can do that as we .. .
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Well, you were asking for discussion and we were
discussing it and so I wanted to have the discussion as to why -CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: . . . (INAUDIBLE) . . . changes.
CHAIR MOLINA: And that's justifiable. Would it be okay for you then if we can -COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah. No, go ahead. Do it your way, that's fine.
CHAIR MOLINA: -- save that portion of the discussion for your revision, if that's .. .
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: That's fine.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. At this point, the Chair will recommend a motion
to pass the proposed bill, which is amended and the filing of the communication.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Moved.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, it's moved by Tavares -COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: -- seconded by Hokama. Discussion, Members? The floor is now
open for any proposed amendments or revisions to the bill. We'll start first with
Mr. Kane . . . and we'll take one revision at a time and then vote on it.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I'd like to amend the motion to include an
exemption for non-profits on the permit fees.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, it's been moved by Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Seconded by Ms. Tavares. Discussion?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Under discussion I think they still need to come in for the permit
just so that we can have a tracking device. But I think from the fee
standpoint -- and I don't know if this the proper place and maybe our Budget
Chair can clarify that maybe the appropriate place to have that discussion -- well,
I take that back. We can do it here and when we're at the budget discussions,
we understand that non-profits would be waived from any type of fee charge. So,
again that's, that's the intent and I think that's a good thing for us to do.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Kane. Members, any other questions or
comments?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Ms. Tavares to be followed by Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, I believe that the exemption or exempting or
waiving the fees for non-profits is properly in this ordinance because the fees are,
actually, if there are fees to be charged, they're reflected in the annual budget
under Appendix B. But if we wanted to do an exception, we, we actually should
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do it here I think. So, I don't, I don't know for sure but that's kind of like a past
practice.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, I don't agree with exempting the non-profits. You
can buy -- are they going to exempt the non-profits on paying for the banner?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I don't think so. Do we give exemptions for flying on
airlines? No. We still, you know, one -- I think, you know, the, the permit fee is,
you know, to help compliance and also the fee helps to pay for the processing of
the permit. If you're going to charge one person, you charge 'em all that's how I
feel, Chairman. You know the nonprofit can pay for the banner, 'eh, they can
pay for the fee, that's how I feel about it.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Any other discussion? Okay. All those in
favor of the amendment to waive the fees for non-profits say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: Opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, let the record show, one, no. So, the amendment has passed.
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Arakawa, Carroll, and Tavares, Vice-Chair
Kane and Chair Molina.
NOES: Councilmember Hokama
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Kawano

MOTION CARRIED.
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ACTION: Exempt non-profits from paying the promotional sign
permit fees.

CHAIR MOLINA: The floor is now open for other suggestions or revisions to the bill.
Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman, I move that under promotional, we
move the number from, of square footage from 8 to 12.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, it's been moved to, to increase the square footage from 8 sq. ft.
to 12 ft. Is there a second?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Which one? On what?
CHAIR MOLINA: Under Promotional.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Under Promotional.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, it's been seconded by Mr. Carroll. Discussion? Mr. Arakawa,
the maker of the motion.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, as the Department has
concurred, it's not an onerous change it's more practical.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Any other comments or questions with regards to
the amendment? Hearing none. All those in favor of the amendment to the
motion say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Okay. Thank you. The Chair will mark the
amendment passing as a unanimous vote.
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VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Arakawa, Carroll, Hokama and Tavares,
Vice-Chair Kane and Chair Molina.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Kawano

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Increase the maximum size allowed for promotional signs
from 8 sq. ft. to 12 ft.

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, the floor is now open for other revisions or amendments to the
proposed bill.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, so we have, I'm sorry, Mr. Carroll to be followed by
Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: The 60 to 64 ft.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, that is for, regarding building setback, I presume.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Right.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, it's been moved to increase the building setback from 60 sq. ft.
to 64 sq. ft. Is there a second?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: No, no, no, no, that's, that's not it.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Wait. Sixty-two. What was?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: It's the size of the . . .
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's not the . . . (INAUDIBLE) . . . it's the signs.
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VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yeah, it's the size of the sign.
CHAIR MOLINA: I'm sorry. Okay, size of the signs not the building setback. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Sign. Yeah. Excuse me, I'm sorry.
CHAIR MOLINA: If you could restate your motion, Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Yeah, the size signs to, from 60 to 64 ft. Sorry.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, it's been moved by Mr. Carroll to increase the size of the sign
from 60 sq. ft. to 64 sq. ft. Is there a second?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: It's been seconded by Arakawa. Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No discussion.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. All those in favor of the amendment say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: Opposed? Okay. Thank you. The amendment has passed
unanimously.
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VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Arakawa, Carroll, Hokama and Tavares,
Vice-Chair Kane and Chair Molina.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Kawano

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Increase the maximum size allowed for building
identification and business identification signs from
60 sq. ft. to 64 sq. ft. for buildings setback 100 ft. or more
with building/business frontage of 80 ft. or more

CHAIR MOLINA: The floor is not open again for proposed revisions or amendments to
the bill. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman, under Promotional Quantity, I move to
change the number from one to three.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, under Promotional Quantity. Can you -?: Page.
CHAIR MOLINA: -- specify the page, Mr. Arakawa, for, for the committee's information.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: On Page . . . on Page 18 under Promotional it reads,
one per business establishment six times per year limit and I'm proposing to
change that one to three.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, so it shall read three per business instead of one.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Instead of, yeah, and the rest stays in.
CHAIR MOLINA: And the rest stays the same. So, the six times per limit stays in there.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Right.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, it's moved to change it to three from one. Is there a second to
that amended proposal?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, it's been seconded by Tavares. Discussion? Mr. Arakawa, as
the maker of the motion.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: . . . (INAUDIBLE) . . . motion .. .
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman, basically what this would allow is if we
have a business that has a corner or it has a front and back door, it would allow
them to split the total amount of signage for those signs to be able to cover the
different areas. You'd still have the same total amount that you could do but you
would have a little bit better exposure that's the purpose of it.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Any other discussion on the proposed
amendment? Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair, can we -- because we didn't have any discussion
regarding this . . . this component of this bill. So, can we get comment from the,
the Planning Department? And just for clarification, this is on Page 18 under the
Promotional -COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Promotional. Yes.
CHAIR MOLINA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: -- or under the Business Identification? Promotional?
CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah, under Promotional.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So, if we can comment. Thank you.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed. Mr. Alueta, if you'd like to comment on the proposed
amendment.
MR. ALUETA: Urn . . . (CHANGE TAPE) . . . possibly are we restricting this promotional
only to the Business Commercial District, which is under 16 . . . portion 70 which
is on 18 or is it going to be for all promotional signs which are cited throughout
the Code. Secondly, one, we would prefer it just to be for the Business District
because I think that's the main area and just have it cited specifically on Page 18.
And that if you do it, do it . . . have language similar to what we have for a
business identification where you have a business that is on multiple street
frontages and limit it, limit it to those. And I, we would only, three
seems -- actually, I, I want to try for two here but, but I have no problem because
we do allow for corner businesses to have two business identification signs. So,
I have no problem but we also limit it to only two signs max. So, I don't have a
problem with that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yeah, and I'll defer if, if Corp. Counsel has some legal aspect to
add to this discussion.
CHAIR MOLINA: Corp. Counsel.
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: I also just wanted to comment that we would, we should add
the word "combined" after 8 sq. ft . . . if, if that's what the intent is that you wanted
to corn. . .allow a business to break up their sign into three different parts but
have the combined total area be 8 sq. ft. that we should add in that word
"combined". Similar to how it is in the, on the information sign, if you look it says
4 sq. ft. combined.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Should this amendment pass I presume, right? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Excuse me, Mr. Kane still have the floor.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yeah, just to finish up and I apologize. For me on this one, I'm,
I'm not going to support the change and that I would prefer this, this change take
place when we have clear language that's recommended through this proposal.
Because right now, I don't see any clear language being set forth and that I
would have no problem supporting it if the clear language would be stated in an
amendment after it gets through this body to the full Council. But at this time, as
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it's structured, I don't have a clear understanding of it and I don't know . . . you
know, how, how the, the impact of this -- and again, I'm trying to understand
where the number three came from versus I heard Joe make a comment of two.
And if this is in any way tied to the discussion regarding having multiple fronts or
a corner business having two windows then why would we ask for three when, if,
if there's any link from that discussion to what's on the floor now. And again,
because of the ambiguity of that discussion if there is a link, if at all, I'm not
willing to support it until we get clarification on what the intent is of this, of this
request from 1 to 3.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Kane. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yes, Mr. Chairman, let me clarify. In working with the
sign ordinance, there was, there was a lot of discussion. What this says right
now is you can only have one sign and there are many businesses that have
fronts, their storefronts on two different streets. Okay. You can have it, you can
have it, the front on one side, the back on a totally different side and you're,
you're only allowed one frontage, one sign now. In some areas, you have
corners and you have something on the back side. By limiting it to the total
number of square feet, I think it's fair. Normally, normally, you only have two and
that, for, for example, if you go to the Kahului Shopping Center you have
storefront in the front then in the backside you have no signage at all identifying
the stores. Okay. By the way, the, the ordinances have been allowing only one.
The two would allow at least that exposure and on a corner lot would allow you to
be able to have signage from both sides. I think that's more practical than, there
were, when we were having the discussions some years ago, this was a major
focal point in those discussions. And I apologize because it's been some years
that this has been in, in discussion. The total number of square feet and the, the
way Corp. Counsel is saying we should word it, we can word it better, but the
intent again is to try and allow this signage, the total signage, to be broken up for
better visibility not to give them more but to make it more practical for the
business.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Arakawa, the, the Planning representative has stated two
as a number that could be workable for them. Your comments on that.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Well, generally, it's been two . . . three if, if you have a
three front. Again, limiting it to just the total square footage that would be
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allowed on one sign would allow that to occur. So, you couldn't have three big
signs, you still have, you're still limited to the total of square footage. Okay. Two
would be good. Three won't happen very often. So, I could live with two I think
that that's practical but there are a lot of, a lot of instances where two is, is much
needed for the businesses.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Committee Members, any other
comments to this proposed amendment? Ms. Tavares
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I wanted to ask staff and, and I mean Joe, when he
was talking about the sign ordinance was there any discussion about treating
buildings that are on corners, you know, with two streets as having two separate
sides?
MR. ALUETA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Instead of making allowances separately for corner
buildings.
MR. ALUETA: We, no, we, we, we just, not with two different sides. We just allowed for
businesses that front more than one street frontage. On Page 18, if you look
under Business Identification, we allow for one per business frontage and it says,
"one additional sign may be permitted if the business is directly adjacent to more
than one street," if you look under Quantity. Similarly, we would . . . should,
should the Council want to allow for more than one banner, we would . . . a
language that we would possibly propose would be for businesses directly
adjacent to more than one street, two banners may be allowed provided that the
total area allowed is not exceeded.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That, that kind of language I think would be better than
just saying two signs. Because if you had one business I mean a business that
had only one front then that would, they could put two signs. If you just said the
maximum allowable was two signs -- I mean under the proposed amendment.
MR. ALUETA: Yes. That's, you, you have to be . . . for us you have to be, it has to
adjacent to a street frontage -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: -- corner.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So, yeah, I, I, I kind of agree. I'd like to see the, the,
the verbiage, the exact verbiage before we actually vote on this.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: And I -- Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: And I have no problem with that. The only, the only
thing that I'm trying to do is I'm remembering back a lot of the discussions we
had, you know, this is two Councils prior when, when this first came up. So, it's
been a long time and there was a lot of discussion. So, I'm trying to bring some
of that back and we are trying to pass something today.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: But we can work on the verbiage to get
it . . . (INAUDIBLE)...
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Arakawa, with that would you be willing to withdraw your motion
for the amendment or do you still want to proceed?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Well, I, I can withdraw it with the understanding that I
will try and bring it up on first reading .. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: . . . so we can put it in.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. So, for the record, you are withdrawing your proposed
amendment and the -COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay, I will do it.
CHAIR MOLINA: -- person who seconded?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: . . . (INAUDIBLE)...
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Ms. Tavares will withdraw the second.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You know if you would permit to ask one question.
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, if this is part of a program or, or policy
establishment to manage the signage then let's say and I'll use my dentist, which
is the American Security Bank of Puunene. It's a multiple story building. There's
separate businesses. I think there's a state office, the bank, of course, my
dentist, another small business. Let's say that building chooses to do a
promotion. So, all the businesses can come in and let's say there's four. With
this proposal that we allowing because they have a corner, they can put up eight
banners because each business will be allowed up to two? Is that what could
possibly happen, Mr. Alueta?
MR. ALUETA: Depending on the configuration of the buil. . .build. . .the unit itself. If the
promotion is for the building, then it would still be only two. If the promotion is for
the business unit, the business unit has to be adjacent to more than one street
frontage. In most cases, you . . . it's only two buildings, two units would be, two
corner units would be directly adjacent to the street. So, I do not think that could
happen.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: But if all the businesses decide to promote on the same
day, you could have as many business banners as there are businesses in a
structure.
MR. ALUETA: That is correct. If they choose to all have a certain Christmas sale.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, if there's 20 businesses, there's 20 banners out
there.
MR. ALUETA: Yes, attached to their unit.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Right.
MR. ALUETA: It has to be attached to where their, they do business.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And we're not saying whether it's a vertical or
horizontal signage, right?
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MR. ALUETA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. So, Members, the proposed motion
by Mr. Arakawa and seconded by Ms. Tavares has been withdrawn. Floor, again
is now open for any other proposed revisions to the bill. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I just wanted to mention, you know, I was talking about
the street numbering, addresses on the buildings, and I was going to make a
motion to include it but Mr. Goode pointed out to me that Chapter 12.32, it's
already required that the buildings have addresses on them. So, I, I, I guess I
just have to let them know which buildings they were. I'd like to give them the
address but I'm not sure what it is 'cause it's not on there but I'll tell them what
streets it's on and about where it is. But it is already an existing ordinance, so I
will not be introducing an amendment for that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Any other proposed revisions or amendments to
the bill? Okay. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, I have one, just one, you know, picayune little
thing. It has to do with parallel structure.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Picayune.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Sounds good, yeah. Parallel structure on Page 21 the
last box or the last set of boxes on the 100. It has 16 sq. ft. if projecting or
hanging 8 sq. ft. So, I think with the parallel construction that I see in other
places . . . the 8 I'm assuming refers to the hanging. Is that correct?
MR. ALUETA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So, maybe that, that should be changed around so
that, "if project. . .if projecting, 8 sq. ft. if hanging."
CHAIR MOLINA: If projecting, -MR. ALUETA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, just to keep it parallel with the rest of the
structure, so --
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- the way it's stated on other pages, you know, it's
clearer.
MR. ALUETA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Because it looks like it's 16 sq. ft. if projecting or
hanging and 8 sq. ft. for something that -MR. ALUETA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- maybe we forgot to put in.
MR. ALUETA: Okay. Typo, we'll, we'll check on that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Oh, okay.
MR. ALUETA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Friendly amendment. Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yeah, there's, yeah, I was just going to say there's no formal
amendment needed, huh, we can .. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, so we can just correct that without, without a formal
amendment on that.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah, it's a typo. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, we'll make that correction prior to first reading. Any other
proposed revisions at this point for the bill? Okay. Hearing none.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The sooner we get it, we get it.
CHAIR MOLINA: Oh, yes, I think the Corporation . . . Corporation Counsel, your
comments.
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair. If I could make a suggestion, on
Page 9 and 11 as I was preparing for this morning's meeting, I would like to keep
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Section 16.12A.190 and 16.12A.220 -- well, let me just read you the headings.
These are Violation and Penalty of the Appeals, Rule Making Authority and
Severability. The proposed bill has deleted those sections, those four sections,
and I'd like to keep them in. Those are standard usually in all of our ordinances.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Members, did you get that? So, can, can I ask what the
rationale for keeping this in?
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: Well, this section just to go over real quickly, um, this
16.12A. . .Chapter 16.12A is the current sign ordinance and we've deleted
everything except for the provisions regarding political campaign signs. And our
ordinances normally have violation and penalty, appeals, and rule making
authority and severability in them. So, therefore, those four sections should
remain in this chapter since we are no longer deleting the whole chapter and
we're retaining the provisions for political campaign signs.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Would this be preferable to having a motion made on the floor
at this time?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yes.
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: Yes.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
CHAIR MOLINA: It's been moved by Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Seconded by Ms. Tavares. Any discussion on this proposed
amendment? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, I'd like to ask Corp. Counsel, how would this
appear in the numbering of the ordinance? 'Cause usually these sections are
towards the end of . . . you know, a section but because this is still going to be,
it's still going to say 12A so it would precede 13.
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: That's correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And then would it . . . apply to 13?
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: No, it would be a different chapter.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, so 13 has its own . . .
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: That's correct.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Provisions.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Provisions, okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mister -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And where are those?
CHAIR MOLINA: Oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm sorry.
CHAIR MOLINA: Ms. Tavares, you still have the floor. Mr. Kane to follow.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, I see it's on Page 28.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yeah.
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: You look on the . . .
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Twenty-seven.
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: . . . the Page 11 and 12 where it kind of gives you the
headings, the, like the contents, you can see there where they're listed, what
sections they are.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, hang on, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So, Traci, the . . . are those sections then parallel?
Because I see appeals --
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MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: And then on Page -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- on 180.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: And then Page 30.
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: Yeah, the, this bill is -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, severability is 260 -- oh, okay I see what it is.
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: Yeah, the bill is actually composed of . . . now, the, the
amended bill is now composed of two separate chapters.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, okay. I got it.
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: Chapters 16.12A and then the new proposed which is 16.13.
So, they, we have to have the same provisions in both.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, so Mr. Kane to be followed by Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: And just to follow up on that. Since we're deleting everything else
out but then we're now looking at adding those in then the numbering would be
16.12A. and then those numbers would be adjusted to accommodate the four
sections being added back in.
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: That's correct.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So, it would be -MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: Sixteen -VICE-CHAIR KANE: -- .020, 030, 040, and 050.
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: And 070.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yes.
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: Yes.
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VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Kane. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, no questions. Okay, the amendment on the floor before you if
there's no other discussion. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I'd like to move to -VICE-CHAIR KANE: We have a motion on the floor . . . (INAUDIBLE)...
CHAIR MOLINA: Currently, we have motion on the floor for now.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Oh, excuse me, sorry.
CHAIR MOLINA: I mean maybe after this, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Sorry. Getting ahead.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, the motion, if there's no other discussion. All those in favor of
the proposed amendment say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: All opposed? Thank you. The amendment has passed unanimously.
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmember Arakawa, Carroll, Hokama and Tavares,
Vice-Chair Kane and Chair Molina.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Kawano

MOTION CARRIED.
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ACTION: Add in Violation and Penalty, Appeals, Rule Making
Authority and Severability sections to Chapter 16.12

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Mr. Arakawa, you have the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I'd like to remove the requirement
for permits on Page 18 under Promotion.
CHAIR MOLINA: Page 18 . . . requirement for permits and this is -COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So, where it says yes there, I would move to have it
say no ... deleted.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, it's moved by Mr. Arakawa. Is there a second?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm sorry, what, I need clarification.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Where?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: What, what is it?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Where are we?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay, promotional -VICE-CHAIR KANE: What page, Alan?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Oh, on Page 18, the last column where it, where,
where it says permit required.
CHAIR MOLINA: Oh ... required, yes. And you'd like to amend that to .. .
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Not require a permit.
CHAIR MOLINA: To say no, in other words?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yes.

PUBLIC WORKS AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

February 13, 2002

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: And . . . I'll make the motion first then discussion.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, does everybody know where we're at? Page 18 in the last box
where it says permit required, it currently reads, yes. Mr. Arakawa is proposing
that it read, no. Okay. Is there a second to Mr. Arakawa's motion? Okay,
seeing that there is no second the proposed amendment dies on the floor. Okay.
Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: In, in view of what I think Mr. Arakawa was trying to do
with that, could we have staff or Mr. Alueta go back and work on expanding that
section about how permits will be gotten.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Mr. Alueta.
MR. ALUETA: I think the, the section, actually, that table is just for quick reference
information. The real regulation is on Page, Page 25 and that's 16.13.160, Sign
Permit Procedures. It goes (A) Promotional Signs and it outlines the procedures
for . . . and it's just three -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, that's, that's the section I meant.
CHAIR MOLINA: Bottom of -MR. ALUETA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: If you can expand on the methodology -MR. ALUETA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- by which they could apply for and receive a permit.
You know you were talking about fax and possibly e-mail, stuff like that.
MR. ALUETA: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: If that has, somehow be incorporated in there to make
it easier for the businesses.
CHAIR MOLINA: Would you like to propose an amendment to add the additional
language to . . . at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Well, if you work on it then we can look at it and
propose it at first reading.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: No problem, I can do that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So, just for clarification I guess with that direction the Planning
Department would . . . to you, Mr. Chair, as the committee report mover to
propose any amendments for the body to consider at full Council.
CHAIR MOLINA: I believe that is -VICE-CHAIR KANE: So, I guess you would be the person.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
CHAIR MOLINA: Right.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: It seems like you would be the person -CHAIR MOLINA: So, I'll be . . . have to transmit the letter of request to the Planning
Department.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Members, any other proposals? Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: If I can just briefly discuss what we've been
discussing.
CHAIR MOLINA: Not at this, this time I'd like to --
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Well, because it's -CHAIR MOLINA: -- move on.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: -- it's just to clarify.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, what, what do you need clarification on?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: On Page 26 in this same section under No. 3, the
applicant shall submit a non-refundable filing fee as established in the annual
budget ordinance. Now, in a lot of the discussion we've been having we're not
talking about filing fee. The way that it's worded requires a filing fee, okay, and
that's, that's what I want to be able to clarify.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Because when we were talking about maybe just
having a permit application at the stores or at the, on the Internet where you can
just fax in an answer, that's different from having an established filing fee where
you actually have to make a payment with it.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: And that's what my . . .
CHAIR MOLINA: Let's get a comment from Corporation Counsel or Mr. Alueta from
Planning to Mr. Arakawa's clarification needs.
MR. ALUETA: From the, from the Department's standpoint, we would still go ahead
and process and we'll just send a bill. We do the same thing with copying
anything. They can still file for the permit, and we still go ahead and process the
permit and we collect the fees later. We've had that on, even on our major
permits we go ahead and start the process, you know, the application and we
send them notification that they need to file either more fees then go along with it.
So, I don't see a problem with us being able to still expedite the manner and to
create some language for Councilmember Tavares or this board to see an
expedited permit process for promotional signs and still accomplish the collection
of a fee.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. But that would, that would, in doing this it
would require a fee be established and at this point because it says, you know,
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you have to have a fee with this thing under No. 3 and the point is if it's, if there is
no fee that is established in the annual budget. Let's, let's say we decide just to
have the, the permit to be registered without a fee attached to it then wouldn't
this require that there be some kind of a payment?
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Alueta.
MR. ALUETA: No, it would not. We, we purposely put it in the budget ordinance
because we felt that that, it would be arbitrary for the Department to try to come
up with a fee schedule. We would make a recommendation that, at, during the
budget process of what fee we think would be appropriate. If at that time, you do
not feel a fee is appropriate then none will be established in the ordinance,
therefore, none would be collected during the permit process, and the permit
would be free essentially. It would not change the process.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So, so, from Corp. Counsel would that be true? And
the, the only reason that I'm, I'm saying this is because it's, it actually says, shall
submit a non-refundable filing fee. Okay, and when, if there is no fee that is
established while the ordinance still says that then to get the permit you have to
submit something, the way I'm reading it.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Corp. Counsel.
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: This language was put in, in anticipation that there would be
a filing fee. So, if at the time of the budget ordinance amendment, Council
decides to not provide a fee then it, it probably would be best to submit a
companion bill deleting this, this one section. Just, just for clarification but, you
know, obviously if this refers to a fee that doesn't exist then, then the County
couldn't charge a fee. But, but I can see your point that it should be clarified -COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay.
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: -- and if, if there is no fee charge then we can just do a
simple companion bill and delete this one section -COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay.
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: -- from the sign ordinance.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Thank you. And just, just the reason that I'm bringing
this up is if it requires a fee and you don't have one then the permit might not be
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valid, you couldn't issue a permit because it says it would have a fee. Okay. As I
said but if we can clear it up if we don't establish a fee legally that's fine.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Members, any other questions or
discussions? Then I believe we shall -- go ahead, Ms. Fujita-Villarosa.
Councilmember Kane's amendment to exempt the
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA:
non-profits from a permit fee. Was, was that a particular type of sign or was it for
all signs? What the intention .. .
VICE-CHAIR KANE: My intention . . .
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed, Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: . . . excuse me, my intention was the promotional aspect.
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Car wash banner, you know, do they have to go pay for a permit
and my, my intent in this case was no. They're trying to make, they trying to
make monies to fund their nonprofit. And I don't want to get into the discussion
because I, I can see where Mr. Hokama's vote came into play and so it made me
really think about it. And but what's done is done here but at the next meeting
we could all -- if there's something that compels me to change my mind we'll get
to that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: But that was my intention, promotional.
CHAIR MOLINA: Alright. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: If I can ask a question on that specific . . does, when
we say nonprofit are we saying a registered nonprofit .. .
VICE-CHAIR KANE: 501(c)(3).
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: . . . 501(c)(3)? Because if you have like a club or like
a school activity, for instance, maybe a cheerleading squad doing fundraisers or
football team doing fundraisers where they're not a 501(c)(3).
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Corp. Counsel, can you comment on that clar. . .make that
clarification.
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: Yeah. We would, we would definitely need to clarify what
exactly organizations would be exempted and I'll probably propose a definition
and I'll probably try to find, go through the Maui County Code and see how we've
defined in the past.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Chapter 13.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair, I don't know if it would be appropriate but I, I would
have no problem with asking for a reconsideration and to not propose that
amendment at this time and then allow that to occur at the full Council once we
do define exactly what we mean by that. But again, my intent is with that,
support of that but I can see that there isn't a clarification there and that's my fault
for, you know, just being spontaneous from, from hearing the, the comments of,
of testifiers and, and agreeing with those. But it may be more appropriate for us
to -- well, I don't know, Mr. Chair. I'm just throwing that out and -CHAIR MOLINA: We can consider it, reconsider it -VICE-CHAIR KANE: -- it's up to you as a Chair to, you know, if you feel that it would be
necessary for us to do it that way or just keep it the way it is now and then allow
Corp. Counsel to respond in a, in a definition and then we agreeing to that then
and moving forward that way.
CHAIR MOLINA: Prior to first reading. Yeah, I, I would have a preference for that. We
can keep your approved amendment and then prior to first reading we can go
ahead and once we get clarification from Corp. Counsel on what a nonprofit is.
Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah, and, and just because Corp. Counsel is going
to have to come up with a definition, you know, I would on a personal level prefer
that it include as exempted all of these clubs, school clubs, associations, even
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though they don't have a 501(c)(3) that's my personal. But perhaps you can do it
both ways where it is a 501(c)(3) and it's not.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, your personal comments will be taken into consideration by the
Corp. Counsel. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Since we want to open up the can then I would say
Corp. Counsel needs to figure out does it make a difference . . . regarding the,
the property lessee or the ownership. You know when you talk about clubs,
they're using commercial properties, so norm. . .norm. . .normally would be under
this part of the commercial signage. Okay. But the establishment, the business
is not signing up for the promotion banner the club is. So, are they still
considered a commercial sign because they're using commercial property? I
mean how much do you want to get nitty-gritty and picky about this kind of thing.
Okay. So, you know, if we're going to, if you're going to review it then review the
whole spectrum. Because the club is more than likely . . . being allowed to use
someone else's property, more than likely a commercial property, to help raise
funds for whatever the cause is and whether it's worthy or not, you know, it's up
to the people who's going to donate going to decide that. But the club is not the
commercial business. We're regulating commercial signage. I think there's a
difference. Okay. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: After listening to the comments of the discussion, I'm going to ask
for a reconsideration of the amendment.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: And from the prevailing side, I think I have that -CHAIR MOLINA: Right. The only person that -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
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CHAIR MOLINA: -- that would have to come from the majority side for reconsideration.
It's been moved by Mr. Kane and seconded by Ms. Tavares. Discussion?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: No discussion.
CHAIR MOLINA: No discussion. Alright. All those in favor of the reconsideration to
take out the pro. . .proposed amendment to exempt non-profits from paying a fee
on, on this matter say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Okay. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: The amendment has been reconsidered and removed.
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmember Arakawa, Carroll, Hokama and Tavares,
Vice-Chair Kane and Chair Molina.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Kawano

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: The motion to exempt non-profits from paying permit fees.

CHAIR MOLINA: Yes, Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: No, it hasn't been removed, we just .. .
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Reconsider.
CHAIR MOLINA: Oh.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: . . . it's for reconsideration now.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So, Mr. Chairman, I just want to amend the motion to remove that
exemption and that way we can look at it and then present something with, if
anything pro. . .present something as an amendment at the full Council level -CHAIR MOLINA: To get a clear definition.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: -- for consideration. Yes.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: And I think that would be the cleaner way to go, Mr. Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Alright. It's been seconded by Ms. Tavares. I, I don't know if,
do we need a second? We already had . . .
VICE-CHAIR KANE: No.
CHAIR MOLINA: . . . the motion. Okay, now this is a new -COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No . . . (INAUDIBLE)...
CHAIR MOLINA: Sorry, this is some. . .this is new ground for me, so I apologize. Bear
with me. Okay, so the motion on the floor is now to reconsider the amendment
and -VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair, I'll, I'll state the, the motion on the floor.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: If you don't mind.
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: We're moving to remove the exemption from what we previously
voted on to put an exemption, we ask for the reconsideration so that we can talk
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about it again since we already talked about it and moved forward from that. I
asked for the reconsideration, we voted on it, that's approved. So, now I'm
asking to remove that exemption and have it as though we never had that
discussion is what my point is.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Back to the original.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yeah, going back to the original. Yeah.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: And it's been seconded.
CHAIR MOLINA: Seconded by Tavares.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: We're in discussion now. Sorry, Mr. Chair, for putting in that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Sorry, this is something new for me but thank you for your
verification.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I feel sorry for the secretary trying to put the motion on
that.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Her eraser ran out already.
CHAIR MOLINA: We're going to pay her extra for today. Any other discussion on the
proposal?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, I think we can have the, the discussion actually
at budget as we setup, if we're going to setup the fees then we do in the budget
ordinance the Appendix B doing all the, you know, non-profit whatever's. And,
and there already is a lot, if you just follow what the Parks ordinance portion has
regarding the community and park uses, they got Type 1 through 5. And so,
there's already definitions for Type 2s and what kind of non-profits and then, and
it includes clubs, it also exempts youth groups and senior groups. So, you know,
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that kind of research has already been done, so we can just borrow it from that
section for discussion purposes during the budget.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Any comments from the Budget Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No .
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. No comments. Okay. All those in favor, seeing that there's no
other discussion, all those in favor say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: No.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, we have, for the record, we have one, no.
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmember Carroll, Hokama and Tavares, Vice-Chair
Kane and Chair Molina.
NOES: Councilmember Arakawa.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Kawano

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Remove the amendment to exempt non-profits from paying
the promotional sign permit fee.

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Any other discussion or proposed revisions before we go back
to the main motion? Okay, hearing none. Here the main motion is to approve
the amended bill with the revisions that have been added. All those in favor say
aye.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman.
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: . . . discussion . . . (INAUDIBLE)...
CHAIR MOLINA: Whoa, whoa, okay. It's alright. Sorry, I just assumed the discussion
was over. I apologize. Okay. Discussion? We'll go with Mr. Arakawa to be
followed by Mr. Hokama and Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Under, under discussion, Mr. Chairman, is, is there a
real need to speed this through, this ordinance to get it passed today? Or, or is it
possible to do one more meeting before we try and pass this out?
CHAIR MOLINA: Well, the . . . I know this has been approximately what, roughly a
five-year process, Mr. Alueta?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: It's been a long process but . . . for us, for this Council
to be meeting on it. I know Joe has been working on this a long time. We're
working on several amendments that we're going to be putting in at the Council
meeting and the Council, in the past, has been very reluctant to have a lot of
discussion on changes at the Council meeting. And that's my major concern is if
we're going to be trying to make the amendments at the Council meeting, we
should probably hash it out during the committee meeting. You know
the . . . that's, that's just my feel on it.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Well, for me, the Chair, I would have a preference to get it out
of Committee. But I would just like to get -- well, I'd like to get feedback from
everybody. I know, I can sort of somewhat sense there are several members
who feel comfortable about getting this out of committee today. But maybe, I
think, Ms. Tavares, you had a comment.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, I think, you know, with the amendments that as
far as I know there's just two that are going to be worked on and if we get
them -- or three -- if we get them ahead of time, we have a chance to read them.
We've discussed it here. I don't think it should take very long at the Council level
and there are issues that have been at the Council level that have had lots and
lots of discussion that have not gone back to Committee. So, I don't see this,
you know, in particular being a problem because it should be a relatively short,
short one since we've been discussing some of those concerns.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Then I believe . . . was it,
Mr. Hokama, you had a comment?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I'm in support of this motion as amended.
You know one thing that I have heard throughout my years and although it may
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not be as many as my, some of my colleagues, we continually complain about
lack of enforcement, finally, we have a proposal that the Department has worked
with various people that have given input including those that will be directly
affected as well as those that have to enforce the Code. Okay. They have given
their input. I think this is one bill that now is helping to clarify so the County can
have proper enforcement. We should be supporting this type of measures. We
continually complain to the department you're not enforcing what we're passing.
I think it's time we listen to those that are in the field doing the job as best they
can and if this helps them be fair and consistent in applying enforcement
throughout the County, then I say we need to get this out today. And so, I would
ask everybody to support this. It's one way if we can help our employees do the
job in enforcing the policy as we as the Council has adopted through the Code.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I also support this, also support this
for the same reasons that Councilmember Hokama has stated. It's been a long
time in coming. It's been a real problem for . . . for instance, the Planning
Commission really would like to see something like this come through in the
Planning Department. I think it's a thing that its time has come and I would hope
that this passes out.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Carroll. Any other comments or questions?
Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Again, Mr. Chairman, I too would like to see this
ordinance passed. I just, in the past, when we had the discussion on the floor of
the Council it's, we had a lot of problems with it. But I want to see this thing
passed. It's been a long, long time and . . . I know Joe, know Joe has put a lot of
work into it. I'll support passing it just so long as everybody understands that we
may have some discussion on the floor when we bring it up.
CHAIR MOLINA: I think, I think this Council is very familiar with long meetings, so I
don't think it would . . . is now nothing new. Okay, if there's no other discussion,
the Chair will ask for the vote on this proposed bill with the revisions and the filing
of the communication. All those in favor say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Thank you. The Chair will mark it unanimous.
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VOTE:

AYES: Councilmember Arakawa, Carroll, Hokama and Tavares,
Vice-Chair Kane and Chair Molina.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Kawano

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: First reading of proposed bill, as revised, and FILING of the
communication.
CHAIR MOLINA: And thank you very much Mr. Alueta and all those involved. As I
stated earlier this is roughly a five-year process, so I'm glad to see that's it's
taking a big giant step today. At this point, the Chair, would like to call for a brief
three-minute recess. . . . (gavel) . . .

RECESS: 11:25 a.m.
RECONVENE: 11:33 a.m.
CHAIR MOLINA: . . . February 13 th is now back in session. The Chair would like to
again thank all the Committee members for their hard work and the Planning
Department for our first item — Item 68 on the commercial sign ordinance.

ITEM NO. 63: RE: TRAFFIC SITUATION AT THE INTERSECTION OF
KAMEHAMEHA AND HINA AVENUES IN KAHULUI (C.C. 01-194)
CHAIR MOLINA: At this time, we shall take up our second agenda item today — Item
No. 63, which deals with the traffic situation at the intersection of Kamehameha
and Hina Avenues in Kahului. The Committee is in receipt of a County
Communication No. 01-194 from Councilmember Arakawa, which relates to the
traffic situation at the corner of Kamehameha Avenue and Hina Avenue. The
Committee may consider whether any legislative action is warranted on this item
and the Committee will also consider other related action including the filing of
County Communication No. 01-194. The Chair has invited for this proceeding
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today, the Director of Public Works and Waste Management and also
representing the Police Department, Lt. Charles Hirata. I'd like to right now ask
the Public Works Director, Mr. David Goode to give us a brief overview on this
matter. Mr. Goode, if you will.
MR. GOODE: Thank you, Chairman. Good morning, Members. About six or seven
months ago, we sat in this Chamber in a Committee of the Whole meeting to
discuss I believe a proposed settlement regarding an accident that happened at
the intersection of Hina and Kamehameha. And I don't know if I'm at liberty to
discuss all the aspects of that meeting since most of it was in executive session
but nevertheless as a result of that committee meeting an item was forwarded to
this committee to discuss the intersection and how to make it safer.
The . . . there's some communication in your file . . . from our Department as well
as from the Traffic Safety Council. This item was forwarded to the Traffic Safety
Council for their review and they came back with short-term, mid-term, and
long-term solutions. The short-term solutions which were basically some
discussed in the Committee of the Whole meeting and also others that were
brought up by our staff at the Traffic Safety Council meeting included the amber
reflectors on the sign post, adding the raised reflective pavement markers to the
existing pavement word. . .wordings. So, if you, as you drive into the intersection
there are si. . .it's painted in the, on the roadway "stop ahead". And the idea was
to go ahead and put the raised pavement markers that, say the, the "s" in stop,
would be to outline it or put the markers right in the middle of it to make it much
more visible. We have prepared a work order that's gone to our Highways
Division. My understanding in checking with staff yesterday was that that work
would be done by the end of this month. That would include restriping the
crosswalk to what we call the Universal Style like you see all the, the crosswalks
now are painted in those big bold stripes; repainting the "stop ahead"; putting the
raised pavement markers on "stop ahead"; and adding some reflective . . . device
into the post of the sign. The Traffic Safety Council also looked at a mid-term
solu. . .solution could be adding flashing red beacons and long-term . . . they
expressed some desire to even check out a roundabout or perhaps even I guess
signalization. I, I can tell you that at least our department has forwarded up to
the Administration a request for funds for a CIP project for this intersection. So, I,
I fully expect that that will be part of our budget proposal for FY '03 and that's
what I have at this time.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Goode. Okay, Members, any questions for
Mr. Goode at this time? We'll start with Mr. Arakawa as the maker of the
communication. Proceed, Mr. Arakawa.
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. You know because I
live on that intersection . . . I'm very much aware of a lot of the accidents that are
occurring. And I know the Department is putting a lot of effort to try and see if we
can alleviate the problem. It hasn't been because of a lack of effort. But I think
the Police Department will still be able to verify that there are many accidents
that occur in this corner. It doesn't seem that, you know, it's a straightaway. It
doesn't seem like you could, you could not see the stop sign and the things that
are there but bottom the line is there's still a lot of accidents in this corner of this
intersection and it really needs to be addressed. You know I've suggested
perhaps doing a full striping of the stop, the post, just to have the reflectors all the
way up and down so that people could see the poles a little bit better as I saw in
Philadelphia. Almost anything we do -- and I, I've see now where we're using
tables, speed tables in other communities on these major thoroughfares rather
than speed humps. So, we need to do something there. And again, you know,
the Department has, has been trying to work with this thing because it, they
recognize the problem, so I'm not trying, I really want to stress that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: But -CHAIR MOLINA: Do you have any questions for Mr. Goode at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: In your CIP project, what exactly are you proposing
for this intersection?
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Goode.
MR. GOODE: I believe we'll be talking about either signalization and/or roundabouts or
roundabout for that area. We have had discussions with FHWA locally in
Honolulu about using Federal funds for roundabouts and we basically got the, the
go ahead. This intersection may be a perfect candidate for it but we need to still
work that problem a little bit.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay, because I'd, I'd like to see a roundabout there.
Personally, I think that would work. The major problem in this area is Hina is the
road that doesn't have the stop sign and Kamehameha, which is the main
thoroughfare area, has a stop sign. So, people driving on Kamehameha expect
to be able to go right through and people on Hina don't have a stop sign and they
do go right through and it just doesn't work well. So, if we're going to try a
roundabout or if we're going to put up traffic signalization, I think it needs to be
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done fairly quickly because the number of accidents and the liability to the
County is tremendous.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. Mr. Goode, what would be your
best guess this morning that you would submit to budget for a roundabout CIP
request? Round number I mean, you know, we won't hold you to it but just so we
get a feel for what kind of resources we would be looking at . . . 200,000,
500,000, $1 million.
MR. GOODE: It, it probably less than a million. If it's FHWA, it will be 80/20 match. So,
we'll need, we'll need design funds would be County, the 20 percent match would
be County . . . so probably 300,000 at most.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: For the County, County's share?
MR. GOODE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Chairman, if I may continue?
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
What is your department's plans to expand
Kamehameha Avenue into four lanes? I mean it's always been talked about, you
know, it's designed with the easements and everything that eventually
Kamehameha was, has been thought to be, become a four lane road system. Is
that now on hold or is that still going to progress within a reasonable short
timeframe and do we need to consider whether our investment for roundabout to
address Mr. Arakawa's concern makes sense if we're going to put in the four
lanes?
MR. GOODE: We, we've . . . we started to program . . . Federal funds for Kahului. I
believe we have Papa in there first maybe Wakea to start doing some major
improvements. Some of those roads will need four lanes because of their
volumes. I'm not so certain and perhaps Councilmember Arakawa because he
lives there could tell you that those two roads in that area warrant four lanes.
Because I don't think there's the volume that that needs four lanes in that area
since the area is already basically built out and one wouldn't expect a huge
amount of additional traffic in the next 10 or 15 years there. But we have started
programming for Papa and Wakea and I'm pretty sure it's Papa and I'm pretty
sure it's Wakea. And that would also give us the opportunity to start
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implementing the Kahului drainage master plan as we typically try to do when we
get Federal projects. So, Kamehameha is, is in my opinion, you know, pretty far
a ways out.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, from . . . so just so we're clear, from Puunene
Avenue where at the end of the Maui Mall strip that, which is four lanes, we cross
Puunene Avenue and we're still on Kam, so from there right through to
Luana Gardens and Maui Lani it will, might be still two lanes in your foreseeable
future. Is that what . . . is that, would that be accurate?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, I think maybe as you get to, you know, Puunene that side where it
goes from four to two, you know, it might warrant four over there because there's
a lot of commercial use as well as institutional use. But once you get out towards
the increments, it's single-family.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh. That's correct.
MR. GOODE: Yeah. So, probably two. If possible I think down the road use, to utilize
the right-of-way and to beautify that area, it might make more sense to do two
lanes with some . . . (CHANGE TAPE) ... or medians and things like that and
then go ahead and finish out the infrastructure.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Is there anything that Maui Lani's development
as they progress through their increments or phases, trigger any additional
improvements for Kamehameha Avenue?
MR. GOODE: They're, they're responsible for Kamehameha within their property.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Just from their area.
MR. GOODE: So, yeah, it would go all the way to Maui Lani Parkway.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much, Mr. Goode. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah, just, just for clarification. I think Mr. Goode is
correct most of the area on Kamehameha Avenue has already been built out as
far as the residential and the traffic on Kamehameha really doesn't warrant a
four-lane highway. You, you know, there just, there just isn't the traffic compared
to like Puunene. Puunene probably five or six times higher volume. But the, the
accidents on this one intersection is what really needs to be addressed and
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perhaps looking even at a speed table someplace on Hina or Kamehameha to
slow that . . . volume down might be something you want to look at or the speed
down.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yeah, just soliciting comments from Lt. Hirata, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, proceed. Lt. Hirata.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: And any, any particular comments regarding this particular
intersection? One question I have though and then if you can expound, the
accidents in this area have been primarily daytime or nighttime?
LIEUTENANT HIRATA: This here is a breakdown. There were 51 crashes at Hina and
South Kamehameha over the last nine years. Forty-one vehicles were traveling
on Hina Avenue when the crash occurred. Ninety-four percent of all crashes in
this intersection involved two vehicles. There was one pedestrian auto crash,
one moped auto crash, and one, three car crash at that intersection. The days of
the week, it seems to be pretty much spread out with Friday being the number
one day for crashes. I guess everybody wants to go aloha Friday. By the month,
November seems to be the number one. October is zero but they're kind of
distributed amongst the other months as well. By years, we've had 'em as low
as, the lowest it's been is two in 1995 and then 2000 and the highest was in 1998
with 12. By hour of the week, it seems to be the evening seems to be the
number one with a high of nine. And the drive times, the morning commute it
seems like a lot of people go, run around at lunch, a lot of people are around at
lunch and also there's a spike at 2 o'clock when school gets out and also there's
a big spike at 5 p.m. and later and then it drops back down again. There's a
slight, it goes up a little bit again at 7 p.m. And this is the most, most interesting
thing that I found from all this, this data is 63 . . . 63 percent were major crashes
meaning that the total value was 3,000 or more or involved injury. So, the traffic
circle or a roundabout would definitely affect the, the severity of crashes being
that you are horizontally diverting the traffic versus, you know, going over a
speed hump or a table. So, the, you bring the speed down, you will reduce the
severity of the crashes.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Lieutenant. And, Mr. Chair, just to follow up on that
that data that was presented and I'm sorry that the, the Chair of the Traffic Safety
Council is not available to respond to some of the points that they brought up in
their December 1 1 th memo. But the short-term one, I'm trying to understand the
connection between a majority of accidents seemingly occurring during morning,
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afternoon, daytime hours and the, the immediate or short-term response being
putting more reflective markers or pavement . . . well, more of the reflective
calming devices. And what relevance -- and perhaps, Lieutenant, you can assist
us in understanding why reflective would be a good short-term response if it is at
all.
LIEUTENANT HIRATA: Well, well, some of, some of those crashes are at night. I'd say
the majority appear to be during the day but, you know, the big spike occurs in
the evening.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: The 7 o'clock.
LIEUTENANT HIRATA: Evening and night. Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yeah, yeah, yeah.
LIEUTENANT HIRATA: And those would, would help to address the visibility of the
stop sign and, yeah, and I, I think a lot of it has to do with inattention, where
people aren't paying attention to the road. They're just driving down the road.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yeah. Yeah.
LIEUTENANT HIRATA: It's, it's just like a long corridor and, you know, you don't see
the stop sign because you're, you know, you're taking for granted that, you
know -VICE-CHAIR KANE: It's just continuous.
LIEUTENANT HIRATA: -- you're just driving along and just continue on and, and bang.
And so, you know, if we had some type of horizontal diversion there where it
forces you to slow down. I've driven the, the two traffic circles or, or roundabouts
in Honolulu, the one on Likini Street. My sister lives on Likini Street. So, I've had
a lot of experience with that one and it does slow you down. And I've also went
to the one in Kaimuki and experienced that one as well and it does a pretty good
job of slowing people down and, and it also gives people the opportunity not to
stack up but to have a fair opportunity to enter traffic and make a turn where they
need to make a turn.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Lieutenant. Chairman, thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Kane. Any other questions or comments for
the Public Works Director or Lieutenant Hirata? Mr. Arakawa.
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yes, just a quick question and comment. Those
statistics that you have, those are the reported accidents that officers respond
to? Because those, those seem -LIEUTENANT HIRATA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: -- very, very low to me. I've, I've called the Police
Department at least 12 times within a year.
LIEUTENANT HIRATA: These are, there are . . . the, the ones that reports are made.
So, there . . . from 1993 to 2001 there are 51 altogether. They're where reports
were made both major and minor and, and, and it is a possibility that the ones
that you did call for they were minor and people choose not to make a report and
decided to settle amongst themselves. But over the, over this 1993 period to
2001, the . . . you know, it does show a lot of the, the major ones and, and they
were like 63 percent. So, it does tell you that speed is involved in probably some
of these or they just blowing the stop sign completely and broadsiding somebody
or being broadsided themselves causing injury or a large amount of damage.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. Well, thank you very much.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Excuse me. Yes, Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry, your recommendation.
CHAIR MOLINA: Well, at this point, I'm, I would like to go with the suggestions that the
Public Works Director has made as far as proceeding with a proposal for capital
improvements project during the budget session and maybe take into
consideration reflective markers as well as, in the interim, I guess if that's
feasible cost wise. Maybe I could get your response to that, Mr. Goode.
MR. GOODE: Yeah, as I, I think I may have indicated earlier, we're . . . we have a work
order out and the work was scheduled for this month and a lot of it is just
freshening up the paint. In, in looking at Lieutenant Hirata's numbers and, and I
hope when I say this I don't jinx the intersection but the last two years they've
gone down quite a bit . . . '98 was a big year, some other mid-90s. So, some of
the work that we've done in that intersection which Councilmember Arakawa
mentioned, you know, maybe it's starting to pay off a little bit and we just freshen
it up and put some more reflection -- basically more visual aids to tell folks, hey,
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there's a stop sign here, you know, you got to stop. So, I think we'll, that's, that's,
that on it's way and we can discuss it at budget the, the other project too.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed, Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah, and speaking as the Vice-Chair of the Kahului
Town Association, this is one of the major areas of concern, the other being
Puunene and Nina that needs to be addressed. So, just, just be aware that that
the traffic is a major concern for the community association and we're, we're
watching this intersection because there have been so many people that have
gotten hurt in this intersection. And I, I, I'm going to disagree with the numbers
because on a personal level I think I've seen more than what those numbers are
saying but they may not have been reported and that, I'll accept that justification.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Mr. Carroll followed by Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Well, Chair, you gave your recommendation and I wish
to make a motion but if Ms. Tavares wishes to make a comment I'll pass to her.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Carroll. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I could have waited. But are you putting rumble strips
or those little dots on the, on the roadway prior to the stop sign as a way to warn
people that that stop is coming up? Is that one of the things?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: No.
MR. GOODE: It's little bit of an experiment. It's a revised rumble strip. The raised
pavement markings, RPMs, they're the same thing that make up the, the strips
but we're going to place them and outline the letters S, T, 0, P, you know, ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, okay.
MR. GOODE: So, there will be a little bit of sound associated with them but it's more of
a visual element.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Alright. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Okay, Mr. Carroll followed by Mr. Kane.
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COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I was going to make a motion.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Oh, no I made the re. . .1 asked for your recommendation and I
don't know if you were looking at making a formal recommendation for the body
to consider as far as legislative action, Mr. Chair, if any.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Well, at this point, the Chair was, would entertain a motion
to -- well, okay, I, I'd like to, just for the record, list down the recommendations
that we're, that we're looking at, we're looking at restriping where necessary and
also possibly adding reflectors. I'm trying to get a pulse feel from the Committee
members and Mr. Arakawa especially since you're exposed to that area. Okay.
So, at this point, the Chair would recommend that we go with the
recommendations from this committee to the Public Works Director to address
the, any short-term solutions and we file the communication.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. We have Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Now, now, let me just suggest that we concur with the
Department's efforts for the interim, which is already ongoing since he mentioned
that the work order has been put out. And so, we are in support of their
intentions to work within -- we have one month to address Mr. Arakawa's concern
as well as refer to Budget and Finance the CIP request from Mr. Goode and from
this Committee and I think the filing of the communication would then would be
appropriate.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. And before -COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: -- I proceed with that, I apologize, Mr. Carroll, I, I stepped out of turn.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: That is pretty much the motion that I was going to
make. It is well worded. If that is his motion, I will second it.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. So, Mr. Hokama, that is, you're going to frame that in a
motion?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Oh, we get one motion on the floor?
CHAIR MOLINA: Or, Mr. Carroll, would you like to make the motion?
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, then I, that that, that, that's . . . I move to make
that a motion, Mr. Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: . . . (laughter) . . .
CHAIR MOLINA: Alright. Okay. It's been moved by Mr. Hokama and seconded by
Mr. Carroll. Discussion? Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah, I can go along with what, following the
Department's recommendation. I just would prefer not to file this pending
the . . . actually getting everything completed in that intersection. Because a
roundabout and I think we should have discussion about that in this committee
and it will be a new type of practice for Maui and we might want to have some
discussion about it to understand what's happening and how it would work. So,
rather than filing it, I'd prefer to keep it in committee just so we can have
discussion as this progresses.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Hokama or Mr. Carroll as the makers of the motion, any
comments on -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: -- because the motion is to file.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I believe we did have a review of roundabouts. I don't
know if it was your committee or earlier in with Ms. Tavares' smart growth. I
think, you know, we had people from the mainland even make big presentations
on our screen here in this Chambers, Chairman, regarding the roundabouts and
how certain, you know, traffic plans and whatnot could be used to mitigate things
throughout our neighborhood or a major thoroughfare area or business area. So,
you know, I, I, I feel that we have been briefed. We have information available
that . . . I, I personally don't see a need, Chairman. You know if the other
members feel it's important that's fine but I personally don't see the need.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. So, alright, so you're still intent on having this communication
filed. Okay. Any comments from Mr. Carroll? Okay. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Now, if you, if you want, we can file it and then if
something comes up, we want to discuss it, we can always bring it back.
CHAIR MOLINA: It can always be resubmitted.
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah, because it's . . . to me it's going to be
something that I think is going to be interesting because it will be the first one
we're really doing in our area. And how we go about getting, acquiring the land
and how we acquire all the things that are necessary to do it as well as how we
educate the community as to what we're doing I think is going to be something
that we should be informed about. But we can always bring that up as another
item.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. So noted, Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And I, you know, Mr. Arakawa, you know, I appreciate it
because the item we filing is the traffic situation at Hina and Kamehameha not
roundabouts. Okay. So, if there's a concern for roundabouts, we, I would think
that would be appropriate for someone to send a item to the appropriate
committee to discuss that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Okay, Members, if there's no other discussion, the
motion before you is to go with the recommendations of the Department of Public
Works and Waste Management in addition to the suggestions made by the
committee and to file the communication. All those in favor of the motion say
aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Thank you. The Chair will mark it unanimous.
Thank you.
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Arakawa, Carroll, Hokama, and Tavares,
Vice-Chair Kane and Chair Molina.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Kawano
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MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: FILING of communication.
ITEM NO. 45: RE: SPEED HUMPS (C.C. 01-130)

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, our next item is Item 45, Speed Humps. Okay. Via County
Communication No. 01-130, Councilmember Carroll transmitted a proposed bill
entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 12.48, MAUI
COUNTY CODE, PERTAINING TO SPEED HUMPS." The purpose of the
proposed bill is to increase the percentage of property owners required to
consent to the placement of speed humps, from 60 to 80 percent, prior to the
submittal of an application to the Director of Public Works and Waste
Management. The Committee will consider or may consider whether to
recommend passage of the proposed bill on first reading, with or without
revisions, and the Committee may consider other related action including the
possible filing of County Communication No. 01-130. And again, the Chair has
invited for this item the Director of Public Works and Waste Management and
also Lieutenant Hirata for his comments. First to start with Mr. Goode if you
could give us an overview on this item.
MR. GOODE: Okay. This was a communication from Councilman Carroll requesting
that this section of the Code regarding administration of speed humps be
amended from 60 percent of the owners in the vicinity of the speed
humps . . . agreeing with the concept of 80 percent. And this again, was sent to
Traffic Safety Council for their . . . discussion and by a letter dated
December 3, 2001 that Sam Clark, Chair of the Council, agreed that 80 percent
seems to be okay with them. That they didn't think that it would be too big of an
impact and that there had already been a lot of requests already completed. And
the Department doesn't have any major comments on that but we'd . . . like to
hear from the members and from the Lieutenant as well.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Lt. Hirata, any comments?
LIEUTENANT HIRATA: I'm usually on the receiving end of a lot of the complaints
regarding speeding in neighborhoods. So, one of the things that comes up is
speed hump applications, so I usually refer 'em to the Department of Public
Works. One of the, the only problem that I see with . . . with moving it up to
80 percent is the fact that we require people in these communities who live in the
neighborhoods to go out and solicit signatures for, for approval for speed humps.
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And one of the problems I would see is if they live in the neighborhood where
there's a lot of absentee owners, and since the owners have to be the ones to
sign off and if they live off island that may become a difficulty in fulfilling the
80 percent. But other, other than that, comments, I have heard comments from
Fire and emergency personnel regarding this, this vertical deflection which
causes, may cause a problem for them, their equipment or people that they are
carrying. But we also do know that our speed complaints have dramatically
dropped off in neighborhoods where speed humps have been installed. And we
actually went out and did a study, we're using one of our devices and found that
the street that, where speed humps were installed the average speed was
20 miles an hour. So, that was a good thing.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Lieutenant. We'll, we'll start first with Mr. Carroll
as the maker of the communication. Your comments.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. First of all, I didn't have any written
request to do this. Everything was verbal in meetings with different police
officers, members of the community, especially emergency personnel, Fire
Department and our ambulance people, especially. I'll just briefly go over the
reasons. The officers that I talked to were concerned about . . . just the response
times which I don't know really how much the effect that was. And when
pursuing somebody, somebody taking off and trying to get away and hitting these
humps and, you know, flying off the road and hitting somebody else or in other
words, you know, having an accident in trying to get away from an officer. The
police one didn't seem to be the most major concern though. The Fire
Department, as you know a large truck . . . any of the trucks they have are not
designed to hit anything. I mean they hit just . . . very, something very small, it's
a huge impact because of the suspension system they have. And there are
some places where the proliferation of speed bumps, of course, is
really . . . forces them -- well, like the Lieutenant said the average speed 20 miles
an hour. It's very difficult when we have emergencies to respond at a 20 mile an
hour speed. But the one that I was most concerned about was the ambulance
service. I myself had a spinal injury and know that . . . how critical it is not to
have . . . being knocked around a lot and being able to get somebody to the
scene fast. It's a matter of life and death. Speed humps, true, it does reduce the
speed limits. It is effective in that but the proliferation of them is so extreme now
that I think it's also having a negative effect. And we're not saying no and I
realize the Lieutenant said it's a legitimate concern, we do have some streets
over here where good grief you probably have 80 percent of the people that
aren't residents in some areas. But I feel that the detrimental effects of having
any more speed humps than we have -- and it's almost like closing the barn door
after all the cows have gotten out because there's so many of them already. But
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I think we need to look at other things to control speed. I think we have probably
enough on Maui in all the areas that were really bad. I think everybody has
already applied in every place where there was really serious problems. And I
feel that this is good for the community. It's something that I think we need to do
now and it will be better for everyone if we do pass this legislation today. Thank
you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Carroll. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you. I think we've heard in various
presentations and I believe Mr. Hokama was talking about the presentation on
the, from the traf. . .traffic transportation people that presented here on
Ms. Johnson's request and, and Mr. Carroll's request. We also have been
hearing that traffic calming devices . . . speed humps are the first generation and
everyone else has moved on except us because we get the ideas, you know,
later and implement them later. But I think that we need to go on to the next, the
second generation of speed calming which has to do with roadway design more
than putting speed humps on things. So, I'm fine with supporting this. I think it
should be difficult, more difficult to put it in. I can say this because I'm happy the
speed humps are already in, in my neighborhood and speed has greatly reduced
there. But I think it's the, it's time for us to move forward and, and look more
seriously at the next type of traffic calming and, and kind of leave speed humps
alone or make it harder. And eventually, I think we're going to be taking out
speed humps that have been put in. And, you know, I think the, the concerns of,
of emergency services available is, is a high priority and if we can make the
streets safer through design or through modification of its design I think that's the
better way for us to go. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Any other comments or questions?
Okay. At this point, the Chair's recommendation is to support the passage of the
proposed bill and the filing of the communication.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So moved.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, it's been moved by -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: -- Mr. Carroll, seconded by Ms. Tavares. Discussion?
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COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No discussion.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, hearing none. All those in favor of the motion say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Okay, let the record show the motion has passed
unanimously. Thank you.
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Arakawa, Carroll, Hokama, and Tavares,
Vice-Chair Kane and Chair Molina.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Kawano

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: FIRST READING of proposed bill and FILING of
communication.

ITEM NO. 19: RE: DEDICATION OF ROAD WIDENING ALONG NAALAE ROAD
AND HOMESTEAD ROAD, KULA (C.C. 01-330)
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Members, we have three more items on the agenda for today.
The first one is Item No. 19 that we'll discuss which relates to the dedication of
road widening along Naalae Road, I'm hoping I'm pronouncing that correctly, and
Homestead Road in Kula via the Public Works, Director of Public Works and
Waste Management a transmitted proposed resolution accepting dedication of
road widening lot for Kahanu Family Limited Partnership, pursuant to
Section 3.44.015 of the Maui County Code. The purpose of the proposed
resolution is to accept the dedication of the road widening Lot 15-C from the
Kahanu Family Limited Partnership along Naalae Road and Homestead Road,
Kula, Maui, Hawaii. Your comments, Mr. Goode, on this dedication proposal.
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MR. GOODE: Yes, Chair, this road widening lot is along, mostly along Naalae Road
with a small portion along Homestead Road. It's 1,300 lineal ft. varies from about
4 to 5 ft. wide for a total of about 5,700 sq. ft. and it was a condition of a
subdivision of a rather large lot into two lots. And we found everything to be in
order and recommend your acceptance.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Any questions for Mr. Goode? Hearing none.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: One question, please.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And, David, I'm going to ask you of all, of all the
remaining requests also. Are you aware of any defer. . .deferrals of
improvements for, for this particular subdivision or road area that the County has
granted whether it be drainage, water . . . intersections, curbs and gutters?
MR. GOODE: I'd have to look at the, the individual file but I can, I can tell you generally
that the Code allows deferrals of improvements for family subdivisions, certain
types of deferrals and the Code allows deferrals of certain types of improvements
for large lot subdivisions. And we also have different standards as it relates to
Naalae Road, which is really Ag. We have another item on here on Shops of
Wailea, that's Urban. So, any deferrals that would be requested would have to fit
into either one of those categories in general. So, I, I can't speak specifically
without, you know, a total review of the file.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And again, Chairman, I bring it up because I would hate
down the road that the general tax base of the general fund is utilized to do
someone else's requirement for improvements. Whether it be a family
subdivision, if they were required to then they need to honor that agreement of
condition for approval. If it's a big subdivision, same thing. I'm tired of hearing
the complaints come to us that things weren't done whether it be drainage,
maintenance or sheet flow . . . programs, intersection improvements, curbs and
gutters. You live in an area, they, they receive approval for . . . variance of all
subdivision requirements and now they coming back and asking us to put back
curbs and gutters and all these other things. I don't think it's fair for the general
tax base to pay for those things and that's why I ask Mr. Goode regarding these
types of deferments. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Mr. Arakawa.
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman, again, I'll voice the opinion that I don't
think we should be requiring a lot of these roadways to be dedicated to the
County. It's an added expend. . .expenditure on our part to have to maintain
these long term and in this particular case it will be benefiting, you know, a very
small community, two houses. So, we, we get what 1,300 ft. of roadway that
we're going to now have to maintain and again, we're required by the rules to
accept these. So, we don't have a choice. I still think we need to at some point
look at those rules and change them so the department has an option and we as
Council have an option to not accept a lot of these roads and leave them private
so that the public does not have to incur the responsibility for these roads, liability
and maintenance. But as long as we're required by law to accept them, you
know, we have no choice but to vote for them.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: My understanding is these roads are already ours and
this is a road widening lot. So, it's a little skinny thing along the side of the road
just to make it meet standard later on I guess. The roads already are ours at
least that's my understanding.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Goode, is that . . .
MR. GOODE: That's correct.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Any other questions or discussion on the matter?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. The Chair will recommend the adoption of the proposed
resolution and filing of the communication.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, it's been moved by Mr. Hokama and we'll give it that one to
Mr. Carroll. Okay.
MEMBERS: . . . (laughter) . . .
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CHAIR MOLINA: Was it, was it you, Mr. Carroll? I thought it sounded like it came from
you.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: That's fine. It's okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Alright.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: At least you fair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Alright.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Spread it around.
CHAIR MOLINA: You know spread, I'm trying to spread the credit around here. Okay.
Any discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No discussion.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Hearing none. All those in favor say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Thank you.
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Arakawa, Carroll, Hokama, and Tavares,
Vice-Chair Kane and Chair Molina.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Kawano

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: ADOPTION of proposed resolution, as revised, and FILING
of communication
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ITEM NO. 24: RE: DEDICATION OF ROADWAY LOT FOR THE SHOPS AT WAILEA
SUBDIVISION (C.C. 02-30)
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Members, Item No. 24, which is scheduled next on our agenda,
the Chair is requesting the deferral of this item. There is a related item that is
coming to committee I believe this Friday. So, it is the Chair's preference to take
up both items as one. So, if there are no objections I will defer this item.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No objection.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No objections.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
ACTION: DEFER - NO DISCUSSION
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Can tell we getting hungry, huh . . .
CHAIR MOLINA: Con. . .consolidate things.
ITEM NO. 25: RE: DEDICATION OF ROADWAY LOTS, NANEA AT KEHALANI,
WAILUKU (C.C. 02-31)
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Members, we're on our last item for today which is Item No. 25
via County Communication No. 02-31. The Director of Public Works and Waste
Management transmitted a proposed resolution entitled "ACCEPTING
DEDICATION OF ROADWAY LOTS FOR SPENCER HOMES INC., PURSUANT
TO SECTION 3.44.015, MAUI COUNTY CODE." And the purpose of the
proposed resolution is to accept the dedication of road widening Lots 93, 94, 95,
96, 97, 98, and 99, from Spencer Homes Inc. in conjunction with the Nanea at
Kehalani Subdivisions, otherwise know as the Wailuku Project District C-7
Subdivision. Mr. Goode, your comments.
MR. GOODE: Mr. Chair, these are road lots. These are currently privately owned. So,
I think we're trying to talk about roadways. This is the Na. . .Nanea project. As
you go down Waiale Road and before you get to the end of the road by the
apartment project, there's a street on your right called Kaupo Street. You go up
Kaupo, that's one of the roads we're talking about, then you make a right on
Papua and then as you're traveling down Papua on your left hand side are five
cul-de-sacs. And they have been completed as far as all the roadway
improvements they've met their one year . . . terms, in terms of making sure
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they . . . everything works. And our staff has found everything to be in order and
we recommend acceptance.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Goode. Questions for Mr. Goode?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Same question regarding deferrals. Are you aware of
any in, in this particular subdivision? Because I think we all know about the, the
deferments that C. Brewer got for Waiale Road regarding drainage
improvements.
MR. GOODE: There's, there's a drainage agreement with the owner of the, which now
is Stanford Carr, of the entire property and the, the retention basin that was built
more on the . . . well, this side of the, of Nanea, I believe accommodates the
runoff from this subdivision. I'm not familiar of any other deferrals because
everything is built, curb, gutter, sidewalk. I don't . . . pretty sure there wasn't
anything else but again, without going through the entire file I can't give a
conclusive answer.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I would, Chairman, I would ask that if this does pass
Committee today if Mr. Goode may be ready to respond at the Council meeting if
there are any . . . deferments that has been granted and he's not aware of at this
time to inform us at that time.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. So noted.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: The Committee will take that request into consideration. Thank you.
Any other questions or comments for Mr. Goode at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman, I, I guess this comes to that question
that was raised earlier . . . do we have to accept the roads?
CHAIR MOLINA: I believe under the State statutes.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Is it under the State statutes that we have to accept
these roadway . . . roads? Until we . . . yeah.
MR. GOODE: If I could answer.
CHAIR MOLINA: I think our hands are somewhat tied. Proceed, Mr. Goode.
MR. GOODE: If I could answer on behalf of Corp. Counsel because when
Howard Fukushima was here last time we discussed this. And I remember we
had this . . . came up in committee and we couldn't -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
MR. GOODE: -- up with a good answer and we came back the next time and we had a
good answer. Because in HRS, I think, 264, there's a section that's, that
basically binds the Councils of all, all counties that if, if a subdivider, you know,
intends to . . . dedicate to the County and is built to the various standards, the
Council must accept. Our Codes, I think it's 3.44 says that we can't accept
property without going through you folks. I mean it has to go through Council in
order to accept property. So, what we've found is that our hands are tied and I
think that's one of the bills you're, you're working with on the Legislature -CHAIR MOLINA: Right . . . (INAUDIBLE)...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right. Right.
MR. GOODE: -- just to kind of clarify this whole thing.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, okay. Now I remember.
MR. GOODE: Yeah. Yeah, that's it.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Yeah, so I guess we'll have to attack it on, on
side first. Because one of the things I have problems with is cul-de-sacs and it is
a private driveway as far as I'm concerned for those people that live on that and
they should take care of their own driveways. And the sooner we get to a policy
like that the more I think we'll discourage cul-de-sacs which is . . . people talking
about, you know, neighborhoods and, and safety of neighborhoods, you need
more ways to get through neighborhoods and the more cul-de-sacs we have the
more you force traffic on to just certain roads. So, you know, that was kind of my
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interest in, in this thing. I had a question about the parkway coming down, you
know, from that cul-de-sac that's off of 97, Lot 97 . . . (INAUDIBLE) . . . the map.
MR. GOODE: I have one.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That's owned, the, the area between the end of the
cul-de-sac and where it's shows Kaha. . .Kehalani Makai Parkway, those, that
road is just an easement part or is that intended that the roads going to break out
to that section? It's off of the, Lot 97, which is in the middle I think.
CHAIR MOLINA: It's going to be a challenge to refold these maps. Mr. Director, would
you like a recess?
MR. GOODE: Oh, I see, I see it. I see it. Yeah. Yeah, Councilwoman Tavares is
referring to what's shown on the map as an easement FF. . . or actually,
easement L and they're both for utility purposes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: . . . (INAUDIBLE) . . . cul-de-sacs.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Members, for your -MR. GOODE: No.
CHAIR MOLINA: -- information at the top of the map, map it's easement L.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: With that issue here. Has your question been answered?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So, it's easements.
MR. GOODE: So, they're probably for waterlines or actually, down here . . .
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: . . . L and F.
MR. GOODE: Yeah, they're, they're generally noted as utility, so it's probably water or
sewer lines.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Any other questions or comments for the
Director? Hearing none. The Chair will entertain a motion to adopt the proposed
resolution and the filing of the communication.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So moved.
CHAIR MOLINA: It's been moved by Mr. Arakawa. Is there a second?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Seconded by Mr. Carroll. Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Can I vote no?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: No.
CHAIR MOLINA: It's at your perusal.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: We're required by law.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Any other discussion? Okay, all those in favor of the proposed
resolution say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Let the record show one, no. Okay. The resolution has
passed.
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Arakawa, Carroll, and Tavares, Vice-Chair
Kane and Chair Molina.
NOES: Councilmember Hokama
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Kawano
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MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: ADOPTION of proposed resolution, as revised, and FILING
of communication
CHAIR MOLINA: And I believe this is the end of our odyssey or journey for today,
Members. The Chair appreciates your professionalism and dedication. We had
a very long but productive meeting. Are there any announcements? Hearing
none. This meeting is adjourned. . . . (gavel) . . .
ADJOURN: 12:19 p.m.

APPROVED BY:

MICHAEL J. MOLINA, Chair
Public Works and Transportation
Committee
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ORDINANCE NO.
BILL NO.

(2001)

A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 16.12A,
MAUI COUNTY CODE, AND AMENDING TITLE 16, MAUI COUNTY CODE,
PERTAINING TO THE REGULATION OF SIGNS
SECTION 1. Chapter 16.12A, Maui County Code, pertaining to
Outdoor Signs, is amended to read as follows:
"[OUTDOOR] NONCOMMERCIAL SIGNS
16.12A.010 Purpose and intent. The council finds
that regulating [outdoor] signs will promote the public
health, safety, and welfare by minimizing the hazards to
vehicle operators distracted by signs, and the hazards
to pedestrians from improperly positioned and maintained
signs.
Regulation will help retain the [county's] County's
unique visual and aesthetic qualities for its residents
and visitors., Vwhile providing a method of effective
advertising.1
16.12A.020 (General provisions. A. The provisions
of this chapter are not exclusive, and more restrictive
requirements imposed pursuant to other laws shall apply.
B. No sign permit issued under this chapter shall be
deemed to constitute permission or authorization to
maintain an unlawful sign, nor shall any sign permit
constitute a defense to enforcement.
16.12A.030 Definitionsj Definition. For purposes
of this chapter, the following [definitions] definition
shall apply unless the context requires otherwise:
C"Building identification sign" means a building
sign identifying the attached building.
"Building sign" means a sign attached solely to a
building, and installed parallel with or at an angle of
less than thirty degrees from the side of the building
facing a street.
"Business establishment" means a person or other
entity renting, leasing, or owning a unit in a building
being used for commercial or industrial uses.
"Destination area" means a planned resort
destination area or project district area intended as a
major tourist destination area, consistent with the
general plan and community plans.
"Directional sign" means a sign which contains no
advertising but is intended to guide vehicular and

pedestrian traffic, and which is installed along streets
within a destination area.
"Director" means the director of public works or an
authorized representative.
"Ground sign" means a single- or multi-faced sign
supported on and attached to the ground.
"Information sign" means a sign providing
information on activities on the property, such as store
hours, conditions of sale, acceptable credit cardsj
"Political campaign sign" means a temporary sign
supporting the candidacies of persons seeking political
office.
C"Portable sign" means a sign designed to be
movable, rather than being permanently affixed to real
property.
"Project sign" means a sign which is erected on land
where construction is occurring pursuant to a valid
building permit, and which informs the public about the
project being constructed.
"Projecting sign" means a building sign installed at
an angle of more than thirty degrees from the side of the
building facing a street.
"Promotional sign" means a temporary sign
advertising a special event having a limited duration,
such as grand openings, holidays, and sales.
"Real estate sign" means a temporary sign
advertising the real estate upon which the sign is
located as being for rent, lease, or sale.
"Sign" means letters, numbers, symbols, logos,
figures, surfaces, and any other communications or
objects conveying messages, advertisements of products
and services or information to the public; provided, the
term shall not include window displays, scoreboards,
government flags, government signs, gravestones,
hazardous condition signs, commemorative plaques, house
address numbers, automobile bumper stickers, signs held
by an individual for nonprofit purposes, signs which are
a part of an individual's clothing, or signs not visible
from public rights-of-way, or surrounding properties.
"Traffic sign" means a sign used to control and
direct traffic within private properties, such as stop
signs, one way signs, and exit signs.
"UDRB" means the Urban Design Review Board.
"Wind sign" means a sign designed to move in or with
the wind.
16.12A.040 General prohibition--Maintenance. All
signs not specifically authorized by this chapter are
prohibited. Signs authorized by this chapter shall be
maintained in a safe and functional condition, and no
permit shall be required for such maintenance.
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16.12A.050
Signs authorized for commercial,
industrial, hotel and apartment districts.
A. For
commercial, industrial, hotel, and apartment districts,
the following signs are authorized:
1.
One ground sign for each street frontage
of a lot; provided, that parcels developed or used
as a single project, such as a shopping center or
apartment complex, shall be considered one lot;
2.
One building identification sign for each
side of a building fronting a street; provided that
the building is used exclusively by more than one
business establishment;
3. One building sign for each business
establishment; provided that on single story
buildings signs shall be located above the
entrances to units; and provided, further, that
projecting signs shall be allowed in lieu of
building signs for units having entrances on the
ground floor. For multi-story buildings,
individual establishment business sign locations
shall be architecturally compatible with the
building.
B. Allowable Sizes. Allowable sign area shall be
as follows:
Type of sign

No permit
required
category A

Permit
required
category B

Permit
required
category C

Building
identification
sign

up to 12 s.f.

over 12 s.f.
to 24 s.f.

over 24 s.f.

Building sign

up to 12 s.f.

over 12 s.f.
to 24 s.f.

over 24 s.f.

Projecting sign up to 8 s.f.

over 8 s.f.
to 16 s.f.

over 16 s.f.

Ground sign

over 16 s.f.
to 32 s.f.

over 32 s.f.

up to 16 s.f.
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C. Modification of Sizes.
1. For buildings with more than forty feet
of frontage, as measured along a line perpendicular
to the shortest line from the building to the
nearest street property line, the maximum area of
category B building signs shall be determined as
follows:
Where the distance from the nearest
a.
street property line is less than twenty-five
feet, the maximum sign area is twenty-four
square feet, plus three square feet for every
ten feet of building frontage over forty feet;
provided that the maximum sign area shall not
exceed thirty-three square feet.
Where the distance from the nearest
b.
street property line is at least twenty-five
feet but less than one hundred feet, the
maximum sign area is thirty-two square feet,
plus four square feet for every additional ten
feet of building frontage over forty feet;
provided that the maximum sign area shall not
exceed forty-eight square feet.
c. Where the distance from the nearest
street property line is at least one hundred
feet, the maximum sign area is forty square
feet, plus five square feet for every
additional ten feet of building frontage over
forty feet; provided that the maximum sign
area shall not exceed sixty square feet.
16.12A.060 Signs authorized for residential
districts. For single family residential and duplex
residential districts, one ground sign to identify the
subdivision or planned development is authorized. The
area of the sign shall not exceed thirty-two square feet
in area. The sign shall be located at the primary
entrance to the subdivision or planned development.
16.12A.070 Signs authorized for rural and
agricultural districts. For rural and agricultural
districts, the following signs are authorized:
One ground sign, not to exceed ten square feet
A.
in area, for each lot or group of adjacent lots owned or
leased by the same entity, except that where a land use
has been approved by a planning commission and/or the
county council a category B sign may be permitted not to
exceed thirty-two square feet.
One building sign, not to exceed twelve square
B.
feet in area, for each lot or group of adjacent lots
owned or leased by the same entity.
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16.12A.080 Signs authorized for destination areas.
For destination areas, the following signs are
authorized:
One ground identification sign, not to exceed
A.
sixty-four square feet in area, for each primary street
entrance to the destination area.
Directional signs, each of which shall not
B.
exceed twelve square feet in area.
16.12A.090) L6.12A.030 Signs authorized for all
districts without a permit. For all district (the
following signs are authorized:
Traffic signs, provided that each sign shall
A.
not exceed four square feet of sign area;
One project sign not to exceed t. rty-two
B.
square feet of sign area while a valid buil•permit is
er;
in effect, and for fourteen days ther
One real estate sign n• o exceed nine square
C.
height while offers are
feet in area and four fee
being solicited for the --nt, lease, or sale of the real
property on which the gn is located; provided that the
sign shall be remove. ithin ten days after the property
has been rented, 1 sed, or sold;
•4. or posters not exceeding eighteen
D.
Sign41
square feet in display surface, announcing candidates
seeking political office; provided, that such signs or
posters shall be permitted only for a period of
seventy-five days preceding a general or special election
and for a period of ten days following such election.
0.6.12A.100
Signs authorized for all except
residential districts.
For all districts except
single-family and duplex residential districts, the
following signs are authorized:
One promotional sign, not to exceed thirty-six
A.
square feet in area, for each business establishment in
a building; provided that if the unit occupied by a
business establishment has a frontage width of less than
forty feet along a pedestrian or vehicular right-of-way,
then the promotional sign for the business establishment
shall not exceed eight square feet. The banner or sign
shall be erected not more than seven days before the
event and shall be removed one day after the event,
provided that the banner or sign shall not be erected
for more than 14 days;
One clock and temperature indicator sign for
B.
each establishment, not to exceed six square feet in
area;
C. One or more information signs with a combined
sign area not to exceed twelve square feet for each
building or lot, or four square feet for each business
establishment, whichever is greater;
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D. One or more wind signs with a combined sign
area not to exceed twelve square feet for each building
or lot, or four square feet per establishment, whichever
is greater; provided that flags shall be deemed wind
signs for the purposes of this section.
16.12A.110 Prohibited signs. The following signs
shall be prohibited:
A.
Any sign requiring mechanical, electrical, or
any other power source, except wind, for its animation,
flashing, movement, or motion;
Banners, except as provided for in subsection
B.
A of Section 16.12A.100;
C.
Directory ground signs along a street frontage
identifying the occupants of a building or group of
buildings;
Inflatable signs;
D.
E. Signs which refer to activities or uses on
another lot; provided that directional signs are
authorized;
Signs composed primarily of reflective or
F.
fluorescent materials, including but not limited to
mirrors, bright metals, and highly reflective paint;
G.
Portable signs;
H. Signs attached to or placed on a vehicle or
trailer; provided that signs painted on vehicles, and
signs offering the vehicle or trailer for sale, are
authorized.
16.12A.120 Method of determining sign area. A.
The sign area shall consist of the entire surface area
including any plate, frame, outline, or trim.
B.
When a sign consists of letters, words, or
graphics intended to be viewed as a whole, the sign area
shall be the smallest rectangle within which the letters,
words,- and graphics can be placed or inscribed.
C.
For multi-faced signs, the perimeter of the
measurable area shall be the outline of the sign when
viewed from its largest side.
D.
The perimeter of measurable area shall not
include structures required for its support.
The director is authorized to interpret any
E.
ambiguity in this section to implement the intent of this
chapter.
16.12A.130 General sign regulations. A. The
highest point of any sign, except flags, shall not
extend above the highest point of the portion of the roof
or wall of a building or structure to which it is
attached.
B. The lowest point of any sign projecting over
walkways or paths shall not be lower than eight feet
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above the ground, and the lowest point of any sign
projecting over streets or alleys shall not be lower than
fifteen feet above the ground.
The highest point of any ground sign, except
C.
flags, shall not be higher than twelve feet above the
ground.
Every sign and the structure that supports it
D.
shall be maintained in a clean, rust free, painted and
structurally safe condition, and shall be designed,
constructed, and maintained to withstand wind loads of
not less than twenty pounds per square foot.
E.
No sign or its support structure shall prevent
or hinder passage to or from any window, door, or fire
escape of a building. No sign or its support structure
shall interfere with free passage from one part of a roof
to another.
Ground signs shall be securely affixed to the
F.
ground and shall not overhang any public right-of-way.
G. No ground signs shall be permitted between a
building and a street right-of-way less than ten feet away.
H. No sign shall be designed, constructed, or maintained
so as to allow the sign to swing in the wind.
16.12A.140 Sign permit requirement. A. No sign
permit shall be required to erect the following signs:
A category A sign authorized for
1.
commercial, industrial, hotel, and apartment
districts.
2.
A sign authorized for other districts by
this chapter.
B. A sign permit shall be required to erect
a category B or C sign authorized for commercial,
industrial, hotel, or apartment districts.
16.12A.150 Sign permit procedure. A. An owner of
real property, or a lessee of real property with the
written authorization of the owner, may apply for a sign
permit to erect a category B or C sign authorized for
commercial, industrial, hotel, or apartment districts, by
submitting an application to the director. The director
shall prescribe sign permit application forms for this
purpose. The application shall include the following
information:
1.
The name and address of the applicant
and, if the applicant is a lessee, the name and
address of the owner and any intervening lessees of
the real property on which the sign is to be
erected;
For applicants who are lessees, a written
2.
consent executed by the owner and any intervening
lessees of the real property on which the sign is
--
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to be erected, authorizing the applicant to apply
for the sign permit and to erect the sign;
3.
An accurate written description including
graphic specifications and scaled drawings
identifying the location, design, size, support
system, electric service, lighting, materials and
colors for each sign to be erected and location and
square footage areas of all existing signs on the
same premises; and
A nonrefundable filing fee as established
4.
in the budget ordinance.
B.
The director shall review the information for
completeness and inform the applicant within five working
days of any additional information required to complete
the application.
C.
Within five working days after receiving a
complete application for a category B or C sign, the
director shall transmit the application to the planning
director, who shall transmit it immediately to the UDRB.
The UDRB shall review the application and shall approve
the application, approve the application with appropriate
conditions, or disapprove the application; provided, that
if the UDRB does not act on the application within sixty
days after the application is received by the planning
director, the application shall be deemed approved.
Provided, by mutual agreement of the applicant and the
planning director, this period may be extended for an
additional time, not to exceed thirty days.
D.
The UDRB may promulgate rules delegating to the
planning director the authority to act on category B sign
applications; provided, that the UDRB shall promulgate
rules setting standards for the approval of category B
signs; and provided, further, that if the planning
director does not act on an application within five
working days after the application is received by the
planning director, then the application shall be deemed
approved.
Within two working days after the UDRB or the
E.
planning director, as the case may be, acts on a category
B or C sign application, the planning director shall
transmit a notice to the director of public works.
Within two working days after the director receives the
notice, the director shall issue an appropriate sign
permit to the applicant or transmit a notice to the
applicant that the application has been denied.
16.12A.160 Time limit on sign permits. Each permit
for a new sign shall require the permittee to erect the
sign within one hundred eighty days after the permit is
issued. The permit shall require the permittee to screen
the sign from public view, except while work is actually
being done.
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16.12A.170 Nonconforming signs. A. Signs which do
not conform to this chapter or a subsequent amendment,
but which met the requirements in effect immediately
prior to the enactment of this chapter or a subsequent
amendment, maybe eligible for a legal nonconforming sign
permit.
Within ninety days after the enactment of this
B.
chapter or subsequent amendment, as the case may be, the
lessee or owner of the real property upon which the sign
is erected shall submit an application for a legal
nonconforming sign permit. The application shall include
the matters required for other sign permits and, in
addition, shall include a color photograph of the sign
If the
accurately depicting its current condition.
director determines that the sign meets the safety and
maintenance requirements set forth in this chapter, as
amended, a legal nonconforming sign permit shall be
issued in accordance with the procedure provided for
other sign permits issued by the director.
A legal nonconforming sign permit shall be
C.
effective until any of the following occurs:
Five years elapse from the date the
1.
permit is issued;
The sign is relocated or replaced;
2.
The sign is altered, except toward
3.
compliance with this chapter;
The sign is in need of repair or
4.
maintenance valued at more than forty percent of
its replacement value.
16.12A.180 Transfers of sign permits. A sign
permit is not transferable unless a notice of transfer
is filed with the director within ninety days of the
effective date of a transfer of the real property on
which the sign is erected. The director shall prescribe
forms for this purpose.
16.12A.190 Violation and penalty. A. Any signs
not specifically permitted by this chapter are
prohibited. A person who erects, owns, or uses a sign
and who fails to comply with this chapter and the terms
of any sign permit shall be guilty of a violation. An
owner or lessee of real property who allows a sign to
exist, or to be erected or used, on the property, and who
fails to comply with this chapter and the terms of any
sign permit shall be guilty of a violation.
B.
A violation shall be punishable by a fine of
not less than one hundred dollars and not more than one
thousand dollars.
C.
After the director or a law enforcement officer
has given a written notice of violation to a person who
fails to comply with this chapter, each additional day of
9

noncompliance shall constitute a new violation unless the
sign is removed.
16.12A.200 Removal of unsafe signs. A. When any
sign is an immediate safety hazard to the public, the
director may cause the sign to be removed summarily and
without advance notice.
B.
After removal of the sign, a written notice
shall be given to the owner or lessee of the real
property upon which the sign was erected, stating the
nature of the work and date on which it was performed,
and demanding payment of the costs as certified by the
director together with an additional twenty percent for
inspection and incidental costs. The owner or lessee
shall make payment within thirty days. If payment is not
received within thirty days, the matter shall be referred
to the corporation counsel for collection.
C.
Payment under this section shall not preclude
prosecution under this chapter.
16.12A.210 Variances. A. A lessee or owner of
real property upon which a sign is to be erected may
apply for a variance from the requirements of this
chapter. The board of variances and appeals shall
prescribe forms for this purpose.
B.
The variance application shall be submitted to
the director, with a nonrefundable filing fee as
established in the budget ordinance. The director shall
review the application for completeness and shall inform
the applicant within five working days of any additional
information required to complete the application. Within
five working days after receiving a complete application,
the director shall transmit the application to the board.
The board shall hold a public hearing on the application.
The board may grant a variance if it finds the
C.
following:
The variance would not be materially
1.
detrimental to the property owners in the vicinity;
variance
would
prevent
an
2.
The
unreasonable hardship caused by a physical
condition unique to the real property on which the
sign is to be placed, as compared with other
properties in the vicinity; provided that the
hardship was not caused by action or inaction of
the applicant or the applicant's predecessor in
interest; and provided, further, that neither
building design, nor an existing sign, shall
constitute a unique condition;
3. The granting of the variance would not be
contrary to the purposes of this chapter.
D. Within sixty days after receiving an
application for a variance, the board shall grant the
10

variance, grant the variance with appropriate conditions,
or deny the variance; provided that if the board does
not act within forty-five days, the variance shall be
deemed denied. In granting a variance, the board shall
set forth in writing the specific facts upon which the
board relies in making its findings.
E. The board of variances and appeals may
promulgate rules to implement this section.
16.12A.220 Appeals. Any person aggrieved by a
determination by any county official pursuant to this
chapter, may appeal the determination to the board of
variances and appeals within ten working days after
receiving published or other notice of the determination.
The determination being appealed shall be held in
abeyance, pending the decision of the board. The board
may promulgate rules and prescribe forms to implement
this section.
16.12A.230 Rule making authority. The director may
promulgate rules to clarify and implement this chapter.
16.12A.240 Severability. If any provision of this
ordinance or its application to any person or
circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity does not
affect other provisions or applications of this ordinance
that can be given effect without the invalid provision or
application, and to this end the provisions of this
ordinance are severable j"

SECTION 2. Title 16, Maui County Code, is amended by adding
a new chapter to be appropriately designated and to read as
follows:
"Chanter 16.13
COMMERCIAL SIGNS

Sections:
16.13.010
Purpose and intent.
16.13.020
Applicability and effect:
16.13.030
Definitions.
16.13.040
Method of determining sign area.
16.13.050
General prohibition.
16.13.060
Signs authorized in all districts.
16.13.070 Signs authorized in airport,
hotel/resort, business/commercial,
apartment, and industrial districts.
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16.13.080
16.13.090
16.13.100
16.13.110
16.13.120

16.13.130
16.13.140
16.13.150
16.13.160
16.13.170
16.13.180
16.13.190
16.13.200
16.13.210
16.13.220
16.13.230
16.13.240
16.13.250
16.13.260

Signs authorized in single family
and duplex residential districts.
Sign authorized in agricultural and
rural districts.
Signs authorized in public and
quasi-public districts.
Signs authorized for golf courses
and private parks.
Signs authorized in the interim
district and those properties whose
legally established uses differ from
their zoning.
Signs authorized in destination
areas.
General sign regulations.
Prohibited signs.
Sign permit procedure.
Variances.
Appeals.
Time limit on sign permits
Transfers of sign permits.
Removal of unsafe signs.
Nonconforming signs.
Violation and penalty.
Landscape
planting
and
beautification revolving fund.
Rule making authority.
Severability.

16.13.010 Purpose and intent. The council finds:
A. That the people of Maui County have a primary
interest in controlling the erection, location and
maintenance of signs in a manner designed to protect the
public health, safety and morals, and to promote the
public welfare while providing a method of effective
advertising;
B.
That there is a marked increase in the number
and size of signs advertising business activities;
C.
That the increased number and size of such
signs, coupled with the increased use of motor vehicles,
make it imperative that the public streets and highways
be kept free from signs which distract motorists'
attention from driving and which detract from signs
promoting traffic safety;
That the indiscriminate erection, location,
D.
illumination, coloring and size of signs constitute a
significant contributing factor in increasing the number
of traffic accidents on the public streets and highways;
E. That the construction, erection and maintenance
of large signs suspended from, or placed on top of
buildings, walls or other structures, constitutes a
direct danger to pedestrian traffic below such signs,
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especially during periods when winds of high velocity are
prevalent;
That the size and location of such signs may,
F.
if uncontrolled, constitute an obstacle to effective fire
fighting techniques;
That the people of Maui County have a primary
G.
interest in preserving the quality of life in the County
by retaining the natural beauty of landscape, view, and
attractive surroundings of the County;
That such unique aesthetic qualities of the
H.
County also constitute an attraction for visitors and
that a major source of income and revenue of the people
of the County is derived from the visitor industry;
That
the
indiscriminate
erection
and
I.
maintenance of large signs seriously detract from the
enjoyment and pleasure of the natural scenic beauty of
the County which in turn has a detrimental effect on the
visitor industry and thereby the economic well-being of
the County;
J. That it is necessary for the promotion and
preservation of the public health, safety, and welfare of
the people of the County that the erection, construction,
location, and maintenance of signs be regulated and
controlled.
16.13.020 Anigicability and effect. A. This
chapter shall apply only to non-governmental signs
located on private property.
B.
This chapter shall not apply to historic
districts created by chapter 19.50 of the Maui County
Code, to lands administered by the department of hawaiian
home lands, and land designated as conservation by the
state.
C.
The provisions of this chapter are not
exclusive, and more restrictive requirements imposed
pursuant to other laws shall apply, such as sign
regulations pertaining to business country town
districts, Wailuku redevelopment area, or other areas
with adopted design guidelines, and prohibitions or
restrictions set forth in land use approvals.
D. No sign permit issued under this chapter shall
be deemed to constitute permission or authorization to
maintain an unlawful sign, nor shall any sign permit
constitute a defense to enforcement.
16.13.030 Definitions. Unless otherwise expressly
stated, whenever used in this chapter the following terms
shall be taken to have the following meanings:
"Awning sign" means a sign that is part of or
attached to an awning, canopy or other structural
protective cover over a door, entrance, window or outdoor
service area.
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"Banner" means a sign of lightweight fabric or
similar material.
"Board" means the urban design review board of the
County of Maui, as established by the Maui County Code.
"Board of Variances and Appeals" means the board of
variances and appeals of the County of Maui as
established by the Maui County Charter.
"Building frontage" means the length of a building
side facing an adjacent street, rounded to the nearest
foot.
"Building identification sign" means a sign
identifying the name of the multi-tenant building to
which the sign is attached without any other commercial
messages.
"Building setback" means the distance from the
building to the street property line, perpendicular to
the building frontage, rounded to the nearest foot.
"Business establishment" means a person or other
entity renting, leasing or owning a building or unit in
a building being used for commercial purposes with a
general excise tax license.
"Business frontage" means the widest length, from
demising wall to demising wall, of the front of a
building unit occupied by a business establishment,
rounded to the nearest foot.
"Business identification sign" means a sign
identifying the attached business establishment and which
may include other commercial messages.
"Commercial message" means any wording, logo or
other representation that, directly or indirectly, names
or advertises a business, nongovernmental or nonprofit
organization, product, service, or other commercial
activity.
"Construction project sign" means a temporary sign
which is erected on land where construction is occurring
pursuant to a valid building permit, and which informs
the public about the project being constructed.
"Department" means the department of planning of the
County of Maui.
"Destination area" means one of the planned resort
destination or project district areas of Kaanapali,
Kapalua, Makena, and Wailea, which is intended as a major
tourist destination area, consistent with the general and
community plans.
"Direct illumination sign" means a sign which is
illuminated internally or backlit such that an artificial
light source shines outward, away from the sign.
"Directional sign" means a sign which contains no
commercial message but is intended to guide vehicular
and/or pedestrian traffic within a lot or destination
area. Except within destination areas, business
establishments may be identified.
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"Director" means the director of the department of
planning of the County of Maui or the director's
authorized representative.
"Directory sign" means a sign which lists the names
of the business establishments located on the property.
"Ground sign" means a free standing, self supported,
non-moveable, permanent structure erected or supported
securely from the ground containing one or more sign
faces.
"Hanging sign" means a sign which hangs down from
and is supported by or attached to the underside of an
awning, canopy, or marquee, or a sign hung from an arm
attached to a building or structure.
"Illuminated sign" means a sign which is illuminated
from an artificial source either directly or indirectly.
"Information sign" means a sign providing
information on activities on the property, such as store
hours, conditions of sale, acceptable credit cards.
"Indirect illumination sign" means a sign that is
illuminated by an artificial light source shining toward
and on to the sign.
"Lot" means a parcel of land as defined in title 19,
chapter 19.04, Maui County Code, provided that parcels
shall be considered one lot if developed or used as a
single project, including but not limited to shopping
centers, apartments, office buildings, hotels, industrial
yards, warehouse facilities, schools, churches and
hospitals.
"Lot frontage" means the length of the side of a lot
facing an adjacent street, rounded to the nearest foot.
"Portable sign" means a sign designed to be movable,
rather than being permanently affixed to real property.
"Projecting sign" means a sign installed at an angle
of more than thirty degrees from the side of a building.
"Project notice sign" means a sign required by a
government agency to notify the general public of a
proposed land use permit or change in zoning to occur on
the subject property.
"Promotional sign" means a temporary sign
advertising a special event and having a limited
duration, including but not limited to banners.
"Public right of way" means property the public has
a right to enter.
"Real estate sign" means a temporary sign erected on
real property while offers are being solicited for the
rent, lease or sale of the real property.
"Repair and maintenance" means the keeping of a sign
in good condition.
"Roof sign" means a sign erected or constructed as
an integral or essentially integral part of a normal roof
structure of any design.
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"Sign" means a device, fixture, placard, structure
or direct application on real property, either outside a
building or inside within three feet of a window or door,
which is visible from a public right-of-way or adjacent
property, that uses any color, form, graphic,
illumination, symbol or commercial messages to advertise,
announce the purpose of, identify the purpose of a person
or entity or to communicate commercial information of any
kind to the public; provided the term shall not include
window displays, scoreboards, gravestones, commemorative
plaques, government signs, automobile bumper stickers or
signs held or worn by an individual.
"Wall sign" means a sign attached parallel to, but
within six inches of a wall, painted on the surface of a
wall, or erected and confined within the limits of a wall
of any building or structure, which is supported by such
wall or building, and which displays only one sign
surface.
"Wind sign" means a sign of lightweight fabric or
similar material that is mounted to a pole or other fixed
support at one side of the fabric or material and is
designed to move in or with the wind and is attached as
a ground or projecting sign but does not include
government flags.
"Window display" means the display of any
merchandise for sale on the premises within a window.
"Window sign" means a sign that is placed on the
outside of a window or inside within three feet of a
window which is visible from a public right-of-way.
16.13.040 Method of determining eian area. A. The
sign area shall consist of the entire surface area
including any plate, frame, outline or trim.
When a sign consists of letters, words or
B.
graphics intended to be viewed as a whole, the sign area
shall be the smallest square or rectangle within which
the entire letters, words and graphics can fit in.
For multi-faced signs, the perimeter of the
C.
measurable area shall be the outline of the sign when
viewed from its largest side.
D. The perimeter of measurable area shall not
include structures required for its support.
All signs not
General prohibition.
.16.13.050
specifically authorized by this chapter are prohibited.
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16.13.060 Siang authorized in all districts.
Maximum
Size
(square
feet)

Possible
Rinds

Other
Regulations

Permit
required

1 per lot
frontage

32 s.f.

Ground

Only while
valid
building,
grading, or
subdivision
construction
permit in
effect and
for 14 days
thereafter

No

Real estate

1 per lot,
building,
or
business
frontage

9 s.f.

Ground,
wall,
wind, or
window

4 ft. max.
height above
grade. Only
while offers
being
solicited for
rent, lease,
or sale of
property on
which sign is
located and
for 10 days
thereafter

No

Directional

N/A

12 s.f.
destination
areas
8 s.f.
other
districts

Ground,
wall,
window,
hanging,
or
projecting

No commercial
messages

No

Project Notice

N/A

32 s.f.

Ground or
wall

As prescribed
by county or
state notice
requirements

No

Sign Type

Quantity

Construction
project

.
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Siang,
in
16.13.070
authorized
airport.
apartment, and
hotel/resort, business/commercial,
industrial districts.
Size Type

Quantity

Maximum Size
(square feet)

Other
Regulations

Permit
Required

Building
identification

1 per
building
frontage

See chart
below.
If projecting
or hanging, 16
B.f.

Wall,
window,
hanging,
projecting,
wind, or
roof

Must be a
multitenant
building

Yes, if
sign is
greater
than 12
s.f.

Business
identification

1 per
business
frontage.
1 addt'l.
sign may
be
permitted
if
business
is
directly
adjacent
to more
than one
street

See chart
below. /f
projecting or
hanging, 16
s.f.

Wall,
window,
hanging,
projecting,
wind or
roof

May be
projecting
if business
unit has
entrance on
ground
floor.
If multistory
building,
must be
attached to
unit. At
least one
business
identification sign
must be
located on
entrance
side of a
business

Yes, if
sign is
greater
than 12
s.f.

Promotional

1 per
business
establish
ment. 6
times per
year
limit

8 s.f. for
business/
building
frontage less
than 40 ft.
36 s.f, for
business/
building
frontage 40 ft.
or more

Banner,
wall,
ground, or
window

Shall not
be erected
more than 7
days before
event and
shall be
removed 1
day after
event, but
in no case
shall it be
erected for
more than
_14 days

18

Possible
Kinds

Yes

Other
Regulations

permit
Required

Wall or
window

N/A

No

16 s.f. for lot
frontage up to
100 ft.
32 s.f. for lot
frontage over
100 ft.

N/A

May be a
directory
sign

Yes

12 s.f. for
each building
or lot or four
s.f. per
establishment,
whichever is
greater

N/A

N/A

No

Possible
Kinds

Maximum Size
(square feet)

Size Type

Quantity

Information

N/A

4 s.f. combined
per business
establishment
within a multitenant
building.
6 s.f. combined
per single
business
building

Ground

1 per lot
frontage

Wind

N/A

.

BUILDING IDENTIFICATION AND BUSINESS IDENTIFICATION SIGN SIZES
A sign permit is required for all signs greater than twelve square feet in size.
The maximum size area allowed is as follows:
Building setback: Less than
25 feet
Building/business frontage
(feet):

Maximum sign area
(square feet):

49 or less

24

50 - 59

27

60 - 69

30

70 or more

33
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Maximum sign area
(square feet):

Building setback: 25 ft. 99 feet Building/business
frontage (feet):
39 or less

24

40 - 49

32

50 - 59

36

60 - 69

40

70 - 79

44

80 or more

48

Building setback: 100 feet
or more Building/business
frontage (feet):

Maximum sign area
(square feet):

39 or less

24

40 - 49

40

SO - 59

45

60 - 69

50

70 - 79

55

80 or more

60

16.13.080 Sians authorized in sinale family and
duplex residential districts.
Sign Type

Quantity

Maximum Size
(square feet)

Other
Regulations

Permit
required

Ground

1 per

32 s.f.

Shall only
identify the
subdivision
or planned
development

No

subdivision
or planned
development
located at
the primary
entrance
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Sign Type

Quantity

Maximum Size
(square feet)

Other
Regulations

Permit
required

Building
identification,
business
identification,
ground,
information or
promotional

See section
16.13.070

See section
16.13.070

Must be a
legally
permitted
commercial
use

See
section
16.13.070

16.13.090 Sians authorized in agricultural and
rural districts.
Sign Type

Quantity

Maximum Size
(square feet)

Other
Regulations

Permit
required

Ground

1 per lot or
group of
contiguous
lots owned
or leased by
the same
entity

10 s.f.

Must be a
legally
established
use

No

Building/business
identification

1 per
building or
group of
buildings
owned or
leased by
the same
entity for
the purpose
of operating
one business

12 s.f.

Must be a
legally
established
use

No

16.13.100 Sians authorized in public and auasipublic districts.
Sign Type

Quantity

Maximum Size
(square feet)

Possible
Kinds

Other
Regulations

Permit
required

Building
identification

1 per
building
frontage.

16 s.f.
If projecting
or hanging, 8
s.f.

Wall,
window,
hanging,
projecting
or roof

Must be a
multitenant
building

No
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Sign Type

Quantity

Maximum Size
(square feet)

Possible
Rinds

Other
Regulations

Permit
required

Business
identifi- '
cation

1 per
business
frontage
with an
entrance

12 s.f. If
projecting or
hanging, 8 s.f.

Wall,
window,
hanging,
projecting
or roof

May be
projecting
if business
unit has
entrance on
ground
floor.
If multistory
building,
must be
architecturally
compatible
with
building.
Must be
located on
entrance
side of a
business

No

Promotional

1 per
business
establishment. 6
times per
year limit

8 s.f. for
business/
building
frontage less
than 40 ft.
36 s.f. for
business/
building
frontage 40 ft.
or more

Banner,
wall,
ground or
window

Shall not
be erected
more than 7
days before
event and
shall be
removed 1
day after
event but
in no case
shall it be
erected for
more than
14 days

Yes

Information

N/A

2 s.f. combined
per business
establishment
within multitenant
building.
6 s.f. combined
per single
business
building

Wall or
window

N/A

No
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Sign Type

Quantity

Maximum Size
(square feet)

Possible
Kinds

Other
Regulations

Permit
required

Ground

1 per lot
frontage.

16 s.f.

N/A

May be a
directory
sign

No

16.13.110 Siam; authorized for aolf courses and
private ',parks.
Sign Type

Quantity

Maximum Size
(square feet)

Other
Regulations

Permit
required

Ground

1 per lot frontage

16 s.f.

N/A

No

Promotional

N/A

36 s.f.

Shall not
be erected
more than 7
days before
event and
shall be
removed 1
day after
event but
in no case
shall it be
erected for
more than
14 days

Yes

16.13.120 Siam; authorized in the interim district
and those properties whose leaally established uses
differ from their zoning. Signs for uses legally
established within the interim district and those
properties whose legally established uses differ from
their zoning shall be regulated as follows:
Legally established use type

Regulating Section of Maui
County Code

Business, light and heavy
industrial, airport and hotel

16.13.070

Single family and multi- family

16.13.080

Agriculture and rural

16.13.090

Public and quasi-public

16.13.100

Park

16.13.110
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16.13.130 Signs authorize d
tion areas.
An authorized representative of a destination area may
submit a comprehensive sign plan for the destination area
for review and approval by the director. If a
comprehensive sign plan is not approved by the director,
the destination area shall comply with the following:
Sign Type

Quantity

Maximum Size
(square feet)

Other
Regulations

Permit
required

Ground

1 per destination
area located at each
of the primary
entrances to the
destination area

64 s.f.

Shall only
identify
the name of
the
destination
area

No

Directional

N/A

12 s.f.

N/A

No

Individual establishments within the destination
area are subject to the requirements of this chapter.
16.13.140 General sian regulations. A. The
highest point of any sign shall not extend above the
highest point of the portion of the roof or wall of a
building or structure to which it is attached. Roof
signs shall not extend vertically above the highest
portion of the roof and no part of the sign shall be
separated from the rest of the roof by a space of more
than six inches.
B.
The highest point of any ground sign, except
wind signs, shall not exceed twelve feet above the
ground, including any structures required for its
support.
The highest point of wind signs shall not
C.
exceed twenty-five feet above the ground.
D.
The lowest point of any sign projecting over
walkways or paths shall not be lower than eight feet
above the ground, and the lowest point of any sign
projecting over streets or alleys shall not be lower than
fifteen feet above the ground.
No sign or its support structure shall prevent
E.
or hinder passage to or from any window, door, or fire
escape of a building. No sign or its support structure
shall interfere with free passage from one part of a roof
to another.
F. Ground signs shall be securely affixed to the
ground and shall not overhang any public right-of-way.
-
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No ground signs shall be permitted between a
G.
building and a street right-of-way less than ten feet
away.
All ground signs must be accompanied by
H.
landscaping.
No signs, except wind signs, shall be designed,
I.
constructed or maintained so as to allow the sign to
swing in the wind.
Directly illuminated signs are prohibited in
J.
and within one hundred fifty feet of residential
districts. Indirectly illuminated signs must be shielded
in such a way that no direct rays from the light are
visible elsewhere than on the lot where the illumination
occurs.
Every sign and the structure that supports it
K.
shall be maintained in a clean, rust free, painted and
structurally sound manner.
Upon closure of a business, any sign relating
L.
or granted to said business shall be removed.
;6.13.150 Prohibited racing. The following signs
shall be prohibited:
Any sign requiring mechanical, electrical or
A.
any other power source for its animation, flashing,
movement or motion, except wind.
Inflatable signs.
B.
Signs which refer to activities or uses on
C.
another lot.
Signs greater than six square feet composed
D.
primarily of reflective materials, such as mirrors,
bright metals and highly reflective paint.
Portable signs.
E.
Signs attached to or placed on a non-registered
F.
vehicle, trailer or vessel.
Signs attached to or placed on a permanently
G.
parked vehicle, trailer or vessel.
H.
Signs attached to, painted, or placed on a
registered vehicle, trailer or vessel which include
arrows or directional information, except addresses.
I. Neon, fluorescent, fiber optics, and other
similar materials within the agricultural and rural
districts.
16.13.160 Sian permit nrocedure. A. Promotional
signs.
1.
The applicant shall apply for a
promotional sign permit by submitting a completed
form provided by the department at least five
business days before the sign is to be displayed.
2.
The form shall include the applicant's
name and business name, the business address, tax
map key number and phone number, the name and date
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of the special event, and the approximate location
of the sign.
3. The applicant shall submit a non-refundable
filing fee as established in the annual budget
ordinance.
B. Other signs.
1. An owner of real property, an agent of
the owner with written authorization from the
owner, a lessee of real property with the written
authorization of the owner or an agent of the
lessee with written authorization from the owner
and lessee may apply for a sign permit by
submitting an application to the director. The
director shall prescribe forms for this purpose.
The application shall include the following
information:
The name, address and telephone
a.
number of the applicant and, if the applicant
is an agent or lessee, the name, address and
telephone number of the owner and any
intervening lessees of the real property on
which the sign is to be erected;
For applicants who are agents or
b.
lessees, written consent executed by the owner
and any intervening lessees of the real
property on which the sign is to be erected,
authorizing the applicant to apply for the
sign permit and to erect the sign;
c. An accurate written description of
the dimensions of the sign, setbacks from the
property lines- -and other buildings, method of
construction and attachment to buildings and
structures, illumination, materials, graphics,
colors, lettering and message of the sign
including style and landscaping.
d. Plans of the sign, including a site
plan, graphic representation of the sign
design, elevation of the sign on any buildings
or structures, and landscaping plans for
ground signs. The site plan shall identify
the type, size, sign area and location of all
other signs that are on buildings and business
establishments on the lot.
e. For multi-tenant buildings and lots,
an approved comprehensive signage plan shall
be submitted. -____ If a plan has not been
approved, a plan shall be submitted
concurrently with the sign applications for
review and approval.
f. Photographs of the lot and all signs
located on the lot.
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A non-refundable filing fee as
g.
established in the annual budget ordinance.
The director shall review the application
2.
for completeness and inform the applicant within
five working days of any additional information
required to complete the application.
The director may transmit the application
3.
to the board for recommendation. The board shall
make a recommendation to the director to approve,
approve with modifications, or disapprove the
application within sixty days after receiving the
completed application or the application will be
deemed approved. The board shall set forth in
writing the specific facts upon which the board
relies in making its recommendation.
The director may approve, approve with
4.
modifications or disapprove the application in
accordance with this chapter. The director shall
make this final determination within thirty days
from the receipt of a completed application or two
working days after the director receives a
recommendation from the board, if applicable,
whichever is later. This period may be extended
for an additional time, not to exceed forty-five
days, by mutual agreement of the applicant and the
director.
5.
Within two working days after the
director makes the final determination, the
director shall issue an appropriate sign permit,
with or without conditions, to the applicant or
transmit a notice to the applicant that the
application has been denied.
16.13.170 Variances. A. A lessee or owner of real
property upon which a sign is to be erected or an agent
thereof with authorization from the owner and lessee,
may apply for a variance from the requirements of this
chapter. The director shall prescribe forms for this
purpose.
B.
The variance application shall be submitted to
the director, with a non-refundable filing fee as
established in the budget ordinance. The director shall
review the application for completeness and shall inform
the applicant within five working days of any additional
information required to complete the application. Within
five working days after receiving a completed
application, the director shall transmit the application
to the board for action. The board shall hold a meeting
on the application.
C.
The board may grant a variance if it finds one
of the following:
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1.
A variance may be granted for a structure
or activity which is undertaken by a public agency
or by a public utility regulated under HRS Chapter
269 or a private facility or improvement which is
undertaken by a private entity and is clearly in
the public interest; provided that the proposal is
the practicable alternative which best conforms to
the purpose of this chapter.
2.
A variance may be granted for a sign if
the following criteria are met:
Unique circumstances or special
a.
conditions exist which are peculiar to the
land, structure or activity involved;
The proposal is the most practicable
b.
alternative; and
c. The granting of the variance would
not be contrary to the purposes of this
chapter.
Within sixty days after the public meeting for
D.
a variance application, the board shall grant the
variance, grant the variance with appropriate conditions,
or deny the variance; provided that if the board does not
act within sixty days, the variance application shall be
deemed approved. The board shall set forth in writing
the specific reasons for actions taken for variance
applications.
E.
Within two business days after the board makes
its final decision, the director shall issue an
appropriate sign permit, with or without conditions, to
the applicant or transmit a notice to the applicant that
the variance application has been denied.
F. The board may adopt rules to implement this
section.
16.13.180 ADDeals. A. Any person aggrieved by a
final decision of the director made pursuant to this
chapter may appeal the decision to the board of variances
and appeals within ten working days after receiving
actual or constructive notice of the determination. The
determination being appealed shall be held in abeyance,
pending the decision of the board of variances and
appeals. The board of variances and appeals may adopt
rules and prescribe forms to implement this section.
B. An appeal may be granted only if the board
finds one of the following:
That the subject decision or order was
1.
based on an erroneous finding of a material fact or
erroneously applied the law;
2.
That the subject decision or order was
arbitrary and capricious in its application; or
That the subject decision or order was a
3.
manifest abuse of discretion.
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C. Any person aggrieved by a final decision of the
board may appeal the board's decision to the circuit
court of the second circuit in the manner set forth in
HRS section 91-14.
16.13.190 Time limit on Sian permits. Each permit
for a new sign shall require the permittee to erect the
sign within ninety days after the permit is issued. The
permit shall require the permittee to screen the sign
from public view while the sign is being erected, except
while work is actually being done.
16.13.200 Transfers of sign Permits. A sign permit
is not transferable from one entity to another for the
same sign location and size unless a notice of transfer
is filed with the director within ninety days of the
effective date of a transfer of real property on which
the sign is erected. The director shall prescribe forms
for this purpose. A sign permit is not transferable from
one location to another. Sign permits for legal
nonconforming signs as defined in section 16.13.220 shall
not be transferable.
16.13.210 Removal of unsafe signs. A. When any
sign is an immediate safety hazard to the public, the
director may cause the sign to be removed summarily and
without advance notice.
After removal of the sign, a written notice
B.
shall be given to the owner or lessee of the real
property upon which the sign was erected, stating the
nature of the work, the date on which it was performed,
and demanding payment of the costs as certified by the
director together with an additional twenty per cent for
inspection and incidental costs. The owner or lessee
shall make payment within thirty days. Upon payment, the
sign shall be returned to the owner. If payment is not
received within thirty days, the matter shall be referred
to the corporation counsel for collection.
Payment under this section shall not preclude
C.
prosecution under this chapter.
16.13.220 Nonconformina signs. A. Signs which do
not conform to this chapter, but which met the
requirements in effect at the time of the sign's
installation, are hereby deemed a legal nonconforming
sign.
Any changes to a legal nonconforming sign must
B.
comply with this chapter. Repair and maintenance of a
legal nonconforming sign shall be allowed.
New signs proposed for properties which are
C.
subject to a previously approved comprehensive signage
plan shall conform to this chapter.
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16.13.230 Violation and Penalty. A. An owner or
lessee who erects or owns a sign, or allows a sign to
exist, be erected or used on the property which does not
comply with this chapter and the terms of any sign
permit, shall be in violation of this chapter.
B.
Administrative enforcement of this chapter and
assessment of penalties shall be in accordance with
section 19.530.030, Maui County Code.
C. Any person may file a formal written complaint
with the director if the complainant believes that a sign
is in violation of this chapter.
The complaint shall include the address
1.
where the sign is erected, the description of the
sign and its location, reason(s) why the
complainant believes the sign is in violation and
any other documentation or evidence.
The
complainant shall also include complainant's name
and telephone number. The director shall prescribe
forms for this purpose.
2.
The director shall review the information
for completeness and inform the complainant of any
additional information required to complete the
complaint. The director shall then investigate the
complaint and determine whether or not the sign is
in violation of this chapter.
16.13.240 Landscape planting and beautification
reyolyina fund. There is hereby established and created
a fund to be known as the "Landscape Planting and
Beautification Revolving Fund." The fines collected
pursuant to section 16.13.230, Maui County Code, are
hereby deemed appropriated upon receipt and the director
shall utilize the landscape planting and beautification
revolving fund to further the purposes and goals of
chapter 12.24A, Maui County Code, entitled Landscape
Planting and Beautification.
16.13.250 Rule making authority. The director may
promulgate rules to clarify and implement this chapter.
16.13.260 Severability. If any provision of this
ordinance or its application to any person or
circumstances is held invalid, the invalidity does not
affect other provisions or applications of this ordinance
that can be given effect without the invalid provision or
application, and to this end the provisions of this
ordinance are severable."

SECTION 3. Material to be repealed is bracketed. New
material is underscored. In printing this bill, the County Clerk
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need not include the brackets, the bracketed material, or the
underscoring.
SECTION 4.

This ordinance shall take effect upon its

approval.

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

ILLAROSA
ion Counsel
kao\ord\Noncommercial-Commercial Signs.wpd
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